
Exceptional-
Quality

Company No. 200801012850 (814138-K)

Home linen for homes across the world.

A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 2



Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad is Malaysia’s leading integrated 
manufacturer and distributor of home linen which focuses on the 
production of exceptional-quality bed and bath linen, bedding 
accessories and curtains. 

Our Group serves as a one-stop supply centre for home linen 
and bedding accessories. We market our home linen products 
under twelve (12) main proprietary brand names and undertakes 
our own in-house design. Our Group is also a supplier of 
homeware and household items, which complements our own 
manufactured home linen and bedding accessories products.

Home linen for homes across the world.

Exceptional-Quality
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We are constantly looking beyond customers’ 
expectations to deliver exceptional-quality home 
linen products for homes across the world.

We export to countries including Australia, 
Brunei, Cambodia, Dubai, Fiji, Indonesia, Japan, 
Mozambique, Myanmar, New Caledonia, Nigeria, 
Papua New Guinea, Philippine, Singapore, Taiwan, 
Thailand, Turkey and Vietnam.
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Corporate 
Structure

Company No. 200801012850 (814138-K)

DESIGN/MANUFACTURING
AND TRADING

SLEEP FOCUS SDN BHD

Company No.
199601028900 (401252-V)

DISTRIBUTION/TRADING AND
INSTITUTIONAL SUPPLY

SYARIKAT YOONG ONN SDN BHD

Company No.
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DISTRIBUTION/TRADING 
AND RETAILING
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Company No.
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RETAILING
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Company No.
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Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad

Profile of 
Directors

He was appointed to the Board of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad 
on 17 April 2008. He is also a member of the Remuneration 
Committee of the Company.

As the co-founder, he has more than forty (40) years of experience 
in the home linen industry. He has been instrumental in the 
development, growth and success of the Yoong Onn Corporation 
Berhad Group during his tenure with the Group. 

He started his career in 1979 when he joined Yoon On,  
a partnership company, which is involved in trading and retailing 
of textiles and home linen. With his strong business acumen, he 
was involved in developing and creating own brands of bed linen 
which was marketed under the names Diana and Novelle in 1982.

In 1988, together with his brother, Chew Hon Keong, he established 
Syarikat Yoong Onn Sdn Bhd and took over the entire business of 
the partnership company, Yoon On. His main intention is to expand 
the business to include international trades. Besides overseeing 
the Group activities, he is actively involved in creating fabric 
designs for both the mass and niche markets. He has extensive 
experience in the development and creation of home linen designs 
and he is currently heading the Group’s in-house design team.  
He is mainly responsible for the overall operations of the Group 
with emphasis on strategic business planning and promoting 
brand equity of products. 

He does not have any other directorships of public companies.

He was appointed to the Board of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad 
on 28 September 2009. He is also a member of the Remuneration 
Committee of the Company.

He holds BA (Honours) from University Malaya in 1974. Datuk 
Kamaludin started his career in 1974 as an Administrative 
and Diplomatic Officer in the public sector and subsequently,  
he held various distinguished positions in the Ministry of Finance, 
Ministry of Defence, Road Transport Department and Ministry of 
Entrepreneur Development. In appreciation to his services, Datuk 
Kamaludin has been awarded with various accolades. In 2000, he 
was awarded the Bintang Panglima Gemilang Darjah Kinabalu 
(P.G.D.K) which carries the title “Datuk”.

Datuk Kamaludin also sits on several boards in the corporate 
sector. From 2004 to 2007, he was the Chief Operating Officer 
of Fomema Sdn Bhd. He is currently the Chairman of Johore 
Tin Berhad, Group Chairman of Global Marque Group, Group 
Chairman of C.L. Group and also holds directorship in other 
private limited companies. 

Chew Hon Foong
Managing Director and Group Chief Executive Officer

Appointed to Board
17 April 2008

63

Datuk Kamaludin 
Bin Yusoff
Independent Non-Executive Chairman

Appointed to Board
28 September 2009

74
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Profile of Directors

He is the co-founder and was appointed to the Board of  
Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad on 17 April 2008.

He has more than forty (40) years of experience in the home 
linen industry. His career started in 1979 when he joined  
Yoon On, a partnership, which is involved in trading and retailing 
of textiles and home linen. He also assisted in establishing Syarikat 
Yoong Onn Sdn Bhd in 1988. 

As the other partner of Yoon On, he was also involved in many 
aspects of the business in textiles and home linen, which includes 
technical specification in fabrics. His capability has enabled the 
Company to develop new range of product to cater for different 
markets and industries. 

With an in-depth knowledge in the production processes,  
he together with his brother, Chew Hon Foong were involved in the 
establishment of Sleep Focus Sdn Bhd in 1996 and the construction 
of Nilai manufacturing plant for the Group’s manufacturing 
operations. He is primarily responsible in overseeing the overall 
management and strategic business development of the Group 
with emphasis on product development and product research. 

He does not have any other directorships of public companies.

He is a lawyer by profession and was appointed to the Board 
of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad on 28 September 2009.  
He also serves as the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and 
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee 
of the Company.

He was admitted in 1980 as an Utter Barrister, Lincoln’s Inn, Bar of 
England and Wales. He was admitted as an Advocate & Solicitor of 
the High Court of Malaya in 1981. Prior to studying law, he served 
as a senior officer in the Royal Malaysia Police Force.

Since 1992, he has been the Managing Partner of a legal firm in 
Kuala Lumpur. He has represented several large corporations both 
within and without Malaysia. Apart from that, he has also acted 
as counsel for the Government of Hong Kong in several cases.  
He has sat on the board of directors, audit, remuneration, 
nomination and risk committees of a number of public listed 
companies and foreign owned companies in Malaysia.

He retired as an independent director of The Store Corporation 
Berhad in March 2017 after having served 17 years on the 
board. Currently, he is an independent director in Tokio Marine 
Insurans (Malaysia) Berhad and chairs the Risk Management and 
Compliance Committee and the Nomination Committee in addition 
to being a member of the Audit and Remuneration Committee.

Currently, he does not have any other directorships of public listed 
companies. 

Chew Hon Keong
Executive Director and Group Chief Operating Officer

Yeoh Chong Keng
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to Board
17 April 2008

Appointed to Board
28 September 2009
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Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad

Profile of Directors

He was appointed to the Board of Yoong Onn Corporation 
Berhad on 28 September 2009. He is also a member of the Audit 
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.

He holds Bachelor in Social Science (Honours) and served the Royal 
Malaysia Police Force for thirty six years. He was since promoted 
to various senior positions in the force serving a number of states 
namely Johor, Kedah, Sarawak, Federal Territory of Kuala Lumpur, 
and police headquarters at Bukit Aman. Some of the command 
and staff posts held while in service were investigation officer 
(CID), officer in charge of police districts, held the duty posts 
of Assistant Director of Management (Personnel), and Deputy 
Director of Management (Training) at Bukit Aman. He was also the 
Chief Police Officer for the state of Kedah before being appointed 
as Director of Commercial Crime in Royal Malaysia Police at Bukit 
Aman with the rank of Commissioner of Police, a position he held 
until his retirement.

Datuk Hairuddin
Bin Mohamed
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to Board
28 September 2009

72

To enhance his professional capabilities he was selected to attend 
courses both locally and abroad.

a)	 Attended economic crime course organised by Commonwealth 
Secretariat, Oxford, England

b)	 Financial and Organised Crime at International Police 
(INTERPOL) headquarters, Lyon, France

c)	 Investigating Methodology on Financial Fraud, Credit Card 
Fraud, Cross Border Criminal Activities, Money Laundering 
and Counterfeiting and Procurement of Intelligence organised 
by United States Secret Service

d)	 Participated in study tours namely 
i.	 Security and Traffic Management at Paris Airshow, La 

Borget, France
ii.	 Yorkshire Metropolitan Police and New Scotland Yard, 

London related to Database Management, Counter 
Terrorism, Kidnapping, and Cross Border Crimes

iii.	 Criminology Management at CID headquarters, Paris, 
France

iv.	 Revision of the Law (Penal Code) at Asean + China 
organised by Ministry of Interior, PRC in Beijing

He was also a participant at the World Crime Prevention Conference 
organised by United Nations Congress, in Cairo, Egypt. 

He also represented RMP at ASEANPOL held in Hanoi, Vietnam 
and Brunei, CID liason between Malaysia and Singapore, Malaysia 
and Indonesia and Malaysia and Thailand.

In appreciation of his services he has been conferred the Ahli 
Mangku Negara (AMN), Pingat Ismail Sultan (PIS), Panglima Setia 
Pasukan Polis (PPSP), Panglima Gagah Pasukan Polis (PGPP), 
Dato’Setia Di Raja Kedah (DSDK), Darjah Mulia Pangkuan Negeri 
(DMPN), Justice of Peace (JP) and Panglima Jasa Negara (PJN) by 
DYMM YDP Agong.

He does not have any other directorships of public companies.
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He was appointed to the Board of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad 
on 28 September 2009. He also serves as the Chairman of the 
Audit Committee and a member of the Nominee Committee of 
the Company. 

He is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants and was 
previously a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in 
England and Wales. 

Lee Kim Seng 
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to Board
28 September 2009

76

He has more than thirty (30) years of relevant working experience 
in the various services encompassing upstream and downstream 
industries. He joined Harrisons & Crosfield (Sabah) Sdn. Bhd. in 
1976 as a Senior Accountant. He was subsequently transferred 
to Harrisons & Crosfield (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. in 1980 and after 
a year, he was promoted to Chief Accountant. Thereafter, he was 
promoted to Associate Director (Finance) in 1986. 

In 1987, he joined SP Holdings Ltd. in Papua New Guinea. 
Thereafter, in 1990, he joined a plantation group Raja Garuda Mas 
(“RGM”) based in Medan, Indonesia. In 1993, he was promoted 
to Group Financial Controller of the Forestry Division of the RGM 
group. In 1996, he was transferred to a joint-venture oil palm 
plantation group, jointly owned by the RGM and the SALIM group. 
In 1997 after completing his assignment, he was then transferred 
to a public listed subsidiary of RGM group as Senior Financial 
Controller. 

In 2004, he joined Sinar Mas Group (“SMG”) as Vice-President of 
Internal Audit of a forestry group operating in Riau, Sumatera. He 
was then transferred to the position of Vice-President Business 
Control in 2005. After a year, he was transferred to the head office 
of SMG, Jakarta, as an adviser to Managing Director-Finance, 
Forestry Division until his retirement in 2008. 

He does not have any other directorships of public listed 
companies. 

Profile of Directors

Notes to Profile of Directors:
1.	 Chew Hon Keong is the brother of Chew Hon Foong.
	 Save as disclosed, none of the directors has any family relationship with any director of the Company.
2.	 Save for Chew Hon Foong and Chew Hon Keong, who have interest in recurrent related party transactions as disclosed in item 

10 under additional compliance information in this Annual Report, none of the directors has any conflict of interest with the 
Company.

3.	 None of the directors has been convicted of any offences within the past five (5) years or imposed with any public sanction or 
penalty by any regulatory bodies during the financial year ended 30 June 2022 other than traffic offences.

4.	 Please refer to the analysis of shareholdings of this Annual Report for details of the directors’ shareholdings in the Company.
5.	 All directors attended all the five (5) Board meetings of the Company held during the financial year ended 30 June 2022.
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Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad

Profile of 
Key Senior Management

Tan Peng 
(Jon)

Chew 
Hon Yoong

Chief Financial 
Officer

Head of Production

He is a member of the Malaysia Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants (“MICPA”), 
the Chartered Institute of Management 
Accountants and the Malaysian Institute of 
Accountants.

He started his career in 1986 with a 
professional services company providing 
management consultancy services 
including feasibility study, system design, 
risk management and internal control.  
In 1988, he joined KPMG Peat Marwick as 
Auditor until 1992 during which he qualified 
as a member of MICPA. 

From 1993 to 2006, he worked for public 
listed companies and held various senior 
positions like Director, Chief Financial 
Officer, Senior General Manager and 
Company Secretary, his responsibilities 
including acquiring a stockbroking 
company, strategic business development, 

He graduated with a Bachelor of 
Engineering Degree from the University of 
New South Wales, Australia. 

His career started in 1982 when he joined 
Sepakat Setia Perunding Sdn Bhd as 
Design Consultancy Engineer. He left in 
1990 and worked as a Project Manager 
for Airod Sdn Bhd, a company involved 
in aircraft engineering and maintenance. 
He left the company in 1992 and worked 
in various other companies before joining 
Sleep Focus Sdn Bhd and being involved 
in the construction of the Group’s Nilai 
manufacturing plant as well as managing 
the manufacturing function of the Group. 

restructuring of a financially distress (PN17) 
public listed company, reverse take-over, 
merger and acquisition, bonds issuance, 
project feasibility study, funds raising and 
other corporate exercises. 

In 2006, he joined Syarikat Yoong Onn Sdn 
Bhd as the Financial Controller and actively 
involved in the initial public offering 
exercise of Yoong Onn Corporation 
Berhad. In 2009, Yoong Onn Corporation 
Berhad was listed on the main market of 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and he 
was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer 
oversees the Group’s overall financial and 
corporate advisory functions. 

In 2020, he was awarded the Best Chief 
Financial Officer for Investor Relations 
(Micro Cap) at the 10th Malaysian Investor 
Relations Awards 2020 by the Malaysian 
Investor Relations Association.

He was appointed the Head of production 
in 2009 and responsible for managing the 
production of home linen and homeware 
products and has contributed significantly 
in providing technical expertise in the 
Group’s manufacturing operations, 
including development of processes in 
manufacturing from cutting, sewing and 
stitching as well as packing and packaging 
of our end products.

62
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Profile of Key Senior Management

Jimmy 
Sun Kien 
Keong

Dang
Chee Wai

Head of Sales,
Marketing and 
Operations

General Manager 
Operations

He has a Diploma in Management & Retail 
Management and diploma in Fashion 
Designing with Allan School of Design.

Jimmy joined Syarikat Yoong Onn Sdn Bhd 
in 1999 as the Assistant Marketing Manager 
for Sales and Marketing Department. He 
was promoted as Marketing Manager 
and subsequently appointed as the 
Head of Sales and Marketing in 2010. He 
oversees the Company Sales, Marketing, 
Merchandising, Products Branding and 
Products development. He responsible 
for the formulation of Standard Operating 
Policy and Procedures for the Sales and 
Marketing Department, yearly business 
expansion plans and marketing direction 
and strategies of the Company. He has also 
initiated a new business foray in Cambodia 
by the appointment of an Authorised Agent 
in marketing and distributing the Group 

He is a member of Association of Chartered 
Certified Accountants and the Malaysian 
Institute of Accountants.

He joined Elegant Total Home Sdn Bhd in 
2004 as the General Manager to oversee 
the financial and operation functions of 
the Company. He was promoted to General 
Manager Operations in year 2010 and 
oversees the Group entire operations.

products in Cambodia. He has successfully 
lead the Company business distribution 
channel into a new direction and model 
by strategically tied-up with E-Commerce 
platform companies to do online shopping 
and Home Fashion Concept Store under 
the trademark “Niki Cains Homes”.

Jimmy has more than thirty (30) years of 
experience in Retail business. Prior joining 
Syarikat Yoong Onn Sdn Bhd, he started 
his career as a Fashion Designer in 1982 
and won The Designer of Designers Award 
for his outstanding design and he worked 
as the designer for leading companies 
in apparels. In 1998, he was appointed 
by The 16th Sukan Komanwel Organizing 
Committee as Chief Coordinator for the 
Sukan Komanwel Opening ceremony and 
also the Director of Ceremony for KL 98 
Sukan Komanwel KE XVI.

Prior joining the Group in 2004, he started 
his career in audit lines for few years and 
move on as an accountant in commercial 
line. He has more than 10 years of 
experience as an accountant. In year 
2001, he joined Sportzone Sdn Bhd as the 
General Manager responsible to oversee 
the Company’s entire operations which 
principally involves in the business of sole 
distribution of sport wears product under 
the brand name “Lotto” till 2004.

61
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Profile of Key Senior Management

Jay Ng 
Siew Boay
General Manager 
Retail

She has wide exposure and extensive 
operational experience in the retail 
industry with proven records of positive 
accomplishments in her current and past 
roles in addition to skills at managing and 
leading the employees she supervises. 

She joined Monsieur (M) Sdn Bhd in 2013 
as the General Manager to manage its 
more than 20 retail stores throughout 
Malaysia under the trademark of “Home’s 
Harmony”.  She is responsible to provide 
direction for store management, develop 
and lead the operation teams, develop 
and implement the operating budget and 
operational improvements critical in the 
business expansion plan and in building a 
robust sale for the organisation. 

She has more than thirty (30) years of 
relevant experience in the retail industry. 
She started her career in Jerasia Group of 
Companies in 1992 as the Brand Executive 
before being promoted to Brand Manager, 
managing the local and international 
fashion brands. She was offered by RSH 
Group of Companies in 2014, having 
advanced into a higher and senior position 
as the General Manager under the Lifestyle 
& Fashion Division where she was 
responsible for a portfolio of international 
fashion & time piece brands. 

54

Karen Tan 
Lai Ling
General Manager- 
Sales, Marketing & 
Merchandising

She has a Diploma in Management 
and Retail Management, Certificate in 
Accounting and Professional Certificate in 
Financial Planning. 

She joined Elegant Total Home Sdn Bhd in 
2004 as the Assistant Marketing Manager 
for Sales, Marketing and Merchandising. 
She was promoted to Senior Marketing 
Manager in 2010 and General Manager in 
2020. She oversees the Sales, Marketing, 
Merchandising, Products Branding and 
Products development for the Company. 
She is responsible for the formulation 
of costing, business strategies, business 
direction, marketing strategies and 
plans involving the aspects of sales and 
distribution, and responsible for the the 
implementation and undertaken of sales 
and marketing activities as planned. She 

had successfully opened and managed the 
first Home Fashion Concept Store under 
the trademark “Niki Cains Home” outlet in 
Sunway Putra Mall which marked the new 
milestone for the Company.

She has more than twenty (20) years of 
experience in Sales and Marketing as well 
as Retail Management. Prior joining the 
retails industry, she started her career in 
Minna Fashion in 1999 as an Executive and 
later moved on to AIA Co Ltd in 1997 as 
Qualified Financial Planner Consultant by 
providing personalised financial services 
to clients, both corporate and individual, 
specifically in areas of wealth accumulation 
and risk management. She had participated 
in numerous Overseas Training and 
Convention on Financial Planning and Self 
Improvement Courses.

50

Notes to Profiles of the Senior Management:
1.	 Chew Hon Foong and Chew Hon Keong are executive directors of the Company and do not have any other directorships 

of public companies and listed issuers. Save as disclosed, none of the senior management has any directorship in public 
companies and listed issuers;

2.	 Save for Chew Hon Yoong who is a brother to Chew Hon Foong and Chew Hon Keong, none of the senior management team 
has any family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder of the Company; and

3.	 None of the senior management has any conflict of interest with the Company; and
4.	 None of the senior management has been convicted of any offences within the past five (5) years or imposed with any public 

sanction or penalty by any regulatory bodies during the financial year ended 30 June 2022 other than traffic offences.
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Revenue (RM’000) 234,877 255,624 201,714 205,659 227,969 

Profit before Tax (RM’000) 32,795 30,466 19,159 30,555 44,853

Profit after Tax and Minority Interests (RM’000) 25,022 22,828 14,475 23,117 33,872

Shareholders’ Equity (RM’000) 212,788 226,381 233,725 250,496 277,229

Revenue (RM’000) Profit before Tax (RM’000)

Profit after Tax and Minority Interests (RM’000) Shareholders’ Equity (RM’000)
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Management Discussion 
& Analysis 

To be a one-stop supply centre for 
home linen and bedding accessories

The Board of Directors 
and Management of 
Yoong Onn Corporation 
Berhad (“YOCB” or 
“the Company”) are 
pleased to present the 
Management Discussion 
and Analysis to give an 
overview of YOCB and 
its Group of Companies 
(“The Group”) business, 
operations and financial 
position for the financial 
year ended 30 June 2022 
(“FYE 2022”).

OVERVIEW OF THE GROUP 
BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS

Our Group is primarily an integrated 
manufacturer and distributor of 
our own brands of home linen. Our 
manufacturing activities are focused 
on bed and bath linen, bedding 
accessories and curtains. Our Group 
markets all our home linen under our 
own in-house brand names namely 
Diana, Novelle, Jean Perry, Louis Casa, 
Genova, Red Danielle, Cotonsoft, 
Niki Cains, Oasis, Ann Taylor, Sarah 
Miller etc. We undertake our own in-
house design, which is supplemented 
by purchases from international 
independent design houses to provide 
a variety of designs and help address 
diverse trends especially in overseas 
countries.

Our Group is also a supplier of 
homeware, which complements our 
own manufactured home linen and 
bedding accessories. The homeware 
are externally sourced products which 
include:

a)	 Bed and bath linen;
b)	 Bed, bath, living room and kitchen 

accessories;
c)	 Rugs, carpets and floor mats; and 
d)	 Lifestyle furniture and other 

homeware.

Our integrated design and manufacturing 
facilities enable us to be a one-stop 
supply centre for home linen and 
bedding accessories.CHEW HON FOONG

Managing Director/Group 
Chief Executive Officer

Our Group’s target markets are:

a)	 Third party retailers including 
departmental stores, hypermarkets, 
supermarkets and specialty stores;

b)	 Mass end-consumer market through 
our fully owned retail outlets under 
the “Home’s Harmony” brand name;

c)	 E-commerce platform companies 
on online shopping

d)	 Institutions including hotels, resorts, 
hostels, hospitals, royal customs 
and military accommodations, and 
cruise ships; 

e)	 Intermediaries including distributors 
and importers in oversea countries; 
and

As at 30 June 2022, we have twenty-
four (24) fully owned Home’s Harmony 
retail boutique outlets, four (4) Niki 
Cains Homes home fashion concept 
store, one (1) Home Outlet and more 
than 260 consignment counters with 
departmental stores, hypermarkets, 
supermarkets and specialty stores 
in Malaysia. We also supply to 
hotels, clubs, resorts, hospitals 
etc via our authorised agents and 
tied-up with several E-Commerce 
platform companies to sell online. 
Our Group’s in-house manufactured 
home linen and bedding accessories 
are distributed by our overseas 
agents to third party retail locations 
in overseas like Cambodia, Singapore 
and Vietnam.
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Change
RM’000 Change

Domestic Sales 215,083 191,645 +23,438 +12.2%

Export Sales 12,886 14,014 -1,128 -8.0%

Revenue 227,969 205,659 +22,310 +10.8%

Gross profit 103,509 87,512 +15,997 +18.3%

Profit before tax 44,853 30,555 +14,298 +46.8%

Net profit for the year 33,872 23,117 +10,755 +46.5%

Cash and Bank 
balances 133,617 113,863 +19,754 +17.3%

Shareholders’ Equity 277,229 250,496 +26,733 +10.7%

Net Tangible Assets 
per Share (RM) 1.75 1.58 +0.17 +10.8%

The Group domestic sales increase by RM23.44 million or 12.2% from RM191.64 million 
in FYE 2021 to RM215.08 million in FYE 2022 was from higher consignment, retails 
and online sales. Export sales drop by RM1.13 million or 8.0% from RM14.01 million in  
FYE 2021 to RM12.89 million in FYE 2022 was due to slow market in overseas. The Group 
recorded revenue of RM227.97 million in FYE 2022, representing RM22.31 million or 10.8% 
increase compared with previous year revenue of RM205.66 million was generally from 
higher domestic sales.
 
Group Gross profit increase by RM15.99 million or 18.3% from RM87.51 million in FYE 
2021 to RM103.51 million in FY2022 was attributed by higher sales and write-back of 
impairment loss on slow-moving stocks.

Our Group profit before tax increase by RM14.29 million or 46.8% from RM30.56 million 
in FYE 2021 to RM44.85 million in FYE 2022 was due to higher sales, lower operating 
expenses, write-back of impairment loss on trade receivables and slow-moving stocks.  
It has also attributed to higher profit after tax of RM33.88 million, an increase of RM10.76 
million or 46.5% compared with previous year profit after tax of RM23.12.

The Group has healthier cash and bank balance of RM133.62 million, when compared 
to RM113.86 million in previous year was mainly from operating activities with higher 
profit generated and lower stock-holding. Shareholders’ funds at 30 June 2022 reported at 
RM277.23 million, increased by RM26.73 million or 10.7% compared to RM 250.50 million 
in the previous financial year 2021 was attributed by profit after tax in FYE 2022. The net 
tangible asset per share has increased accordingly from RM1.58 at 30 June 2021 to RM1.75 
at 30 June 2022.

2022 Highlights

RM227.97
million

Revenue

RM103.51
million

Gross profit

RM44.85
million

Profit before tax

RM133.62
million

Cash and bank balance

RM277.23
million

Shareholders’ fund
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Management Discussion & Analysis 

BUSINESS CHALLENGES

a)	 Business Risks

	 The Group may be affected by a general downturn in the global, regional and national economy, specifically, the 
Malaysian economy, entry of new players, constraints in skilled labour supply, changes in the law and tax legislation 
affecting the industry, increased production costs, changes in business and credit conditions, fluctuations in foreign 
exchange rates and introduction of new technologies. 

	 The Group seeks to limit these risks through, inter-alia, maintaining good business relationships with its customers 
and suppliers, increasing automation to reduce dependency on labour, efficient cost control, diversification and 
increasing product range.

b)	 Competition

	 The Group faces competition from other manufacturers, domestically, regionally and internationally.

	 The Group is primarily an integrated manufacturer and distributor of our own brands of home linen and bedding 
accessories. This is in contrast to most of the operators in the home linen industry in Malaysia, which are mainly 
contract manufacturers or contract jobbers. As a brand owner, the Group is not subjected to the full impact of 
competition from lower cost producing countries like China. In fact, this lower cost producing country could work to 
the Group’s advantage to maintain competitiveness as our products could be outsourced to overseas contractors if 
the need arises. 

 
c)	 Keeping Abreast with the Latest Trend and Design

	 The Group must keep abreast with the latest trends and fashion in the home linen industry. Global trends and design 
are incessantly and rapidly changing and hence keeping up with the latest trend and design in the home linen market 
would not be an easy task. Failure to do so may render our home linen designs to lose their appeal. 

	 The Group recognises the importance of regularly introducing new designs for our home linen to be in line with the 
current trend and thus, ensuring continuing growth of the Group’s business. The Group develops our designs based 
on market intelligence and management’s surveillance gathered from market observation and customers’ feedback. 

d)	 Political, Economic and Regulatory Considerations

	 Adverse developments in political, economic and regulatory conditions in Malaysia could unfavourably affect our 
financial position and business prospects. These risks include, among others, changes in political leadership, risk of 
war, changes in economic conditions, changes in interest rates, methods of taxation and unfavourable changes in 
government policies such as introduction of new regulations, import duties and tariffs.

	 The Group has taken efforts to diversify the range of products and markets, improve on the marketing and distribution 
strategies as well as pre-empting certain regulations to mitigate any possible adverse impact on the Group from any 
adverse development in political, economic and regulatory authorities.

e)	 Shortage of Skilled Foreign Labour

	 The Group continued to be plagued by shortages of skilled foreign labour in FYE 2022. The Group has actively 
participated in the Government’s rehiring program and sourcing from other local authorised agency to meet our 
labour needs. 

	 The Group plans to reduce its dependency on foreign labour by employing more local staff, increasing its automation 
and procure higher semi-finished products from overseas market.
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f)	 Foreign Exchange Risks

	 The Group imports raw materials such as textile fabrics, cotton and the Group’s products are also sold in overseas 
markets. Sales to these markets are often transacted in USD and SGD which is exposed to foreign exchange 
fluctuations. 

	 We maintain foreign currency bank accounts for business transactions transacted in the respective foreign currencies. 
Foreign currency earnings are maintained in the respective currency accounts, which are used to make payments in 
the respective foreign currencies. This approach forms a natural hedge to minimise our foreign currency exchange risk 
exposure. We also have forward contracts which serve as a hedging instrument for some of our imports purchases.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group’s efficient business model and operations, financial stability and wide distribution network are the underlying 
fundamental strengths of the company. We are optimistic our business will remain strong for the rest of the year and in 
2023, despite a less robust global economic outlook which may affect our domestic performance and our export markets 
in the region. The Group aims to grow from strength to strength over the years and to achieve sustainable growth in sales 
and profits every year.

The Group expects to be able to sustain its performance in the financial year ending 2023 based on its fundamentals and 
business strategies that will allow it to withstand any unexpected adverse trading conditions. The Group shall continue to 
seize all opportunities presented and to reach out to our consumers and create a wider market segment in Malaysia and 
in the region. With a team of dynamic leaders and capable staff, I am certain the Group will become a home-grown name 
to be acknowledged both locally and internationally.

DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors is pleased to recommend a final single tier dividend of 3.0 sen per ordinary share amounting to 
RM4,759,581 in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2022 for shareholders’ approval in the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting. 

Combined with a single tier interim dividend of 3.0 sen per ordinary share amounting to RM4,759,581 paid on 27 July 
2022, this makes a total dividend pay-out 6.0 sen per ordinary share amounting to RM9,519,162 or 28.1% of the profit after 
tax of RM33.87 million for this financial year 2022.

The Group will continue to enhance returns to shareholders whilst seeing that appropriate funds are set aside for business 
expansion and other purposes such as capital expenditure and for working capital. 
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Managing Director/Group Chief Executive Officer
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Sustainability Statement

The Group recognises its role as a responsible corporate citizen and no company can exist by maximising shareholders value 
alone. In this regards, The Group take into consideration of corporate responsibility and the needs and interests of stakeholders 
by fulfilling the expectation of its stakeholders by enhancing its environmental social and governance, (“ESG”) while ensuring 
the sustainability and operational success of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group has always complied with the relevant environmental legislation and promoting environmental awareness as part of 
its commitment to protect the environment and contribute towards sustainable development. 

Environmental element is an important aspect in all our business operations and has always adopted an environmentally friendly 
approach includes policies and procedures with objectives to minimise wastage, maximise energy-conservation, efficient and 
safe waste management in the proper disposal of waste materials, recycling of used materials and adopting environmentally 
friendly best-practices whenever possible to lessen water and electricity usage.

With the growing threat of climate change, the Group has engaged a solar service provider and system integrator to design, 
supply and install two solar photovoltaic module systems (‘Solar Panel Systems”) onto its factory and warehouse in Nilai 
Seremban. The Solar Panel systems generate electricity from sunlight for its factory and warehouse operations and expected to 
save more than 20% of the Group’s energy costs.

SOCIAL 

The Group strives to maintain a sustainable business to continue its contribution to the country’s economic development.

a. 	 Employment

	 The Group businesses created employment opportunities for Malaysians. The Group is one of the main players in home 
bedlinen business with approximately 1,000 employees, 24 wholly owned retail shops under Home’s Harmony, 4 Niki Cains 
Homes home fashion concept stores, 1 Home Outlet Shop and more than 260 third-party consignment counters throughout 
Malaysia.

b. 	 Taxes and Foreign Earnings

	 The Group contributed various taxes to the Government and earning foreign income from its export markets. The Raw 
materials of the Group like fabrics, fibres and cotton were substantially sourced from oversea suppliers and manufactures 
due to availability and the Group endeavours to source locally in future.

c. 	 Suppliers

	 The Group value and respect its suppliers for their commitment and support, supplying high quality materials and products 
in achieving the Group’s long term goals.

d.	 Charity Works and Donations 

	 The Company has made cash donations to Damai Disabled Person Association Malaysia, Hospis Malaysia, Malaysian 
Association for The Prevention of Tuberculosis, Malaysian Association For The Blind, Montfort Youth Centre, National 
Diabetes Institute, Pusat Jagaan Rumah Orang Orang Tua (PKK) SIMEE, Society of The Blind In Malaysia, Shelter Home for 
Children, Persatuan Buddhis Jonq Shan, Loving Heart Services and Yayasan Jantung Malaysia.

e.	 Quality Control and Customers

	 The Group’s products are produced and managed to the highest standards in quality control. The Group is committed to 
continually improving its management and operations systems to deliver quality products to customers. 
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f.	 Workplace 

i.	 Employees Personal Developments

	 The Group believes that employees are resources that drive long term and sustainable corporate growth. As such, the 
Group places strong emphasis on personal development and provides various training courses for its employees to 
enhance and upgrade their work skills for better opportunities of career advancements. Staffs are also sent to overseas 
including trade fairs and exhibitions to better equip themselves with relevant products knowledge, designs and skills or 
specific training course for each relevant individual to assist them to excel in their respective fields.

ii.	 Diversity

	 The Group is committed to provide all staff with equal opportunity to strive and provide diversity in workplace. The 
Group respects different cultures, gender and religions of our stakeholders as we understand that the diversity give 
us broader range of competence, skills and experience to enhance our capabilities to achieve business results which is 
important for the overall business sustainability. 

iii.	 Safety and Health

	 The Group is committed to continuously provide a safe and healthy working environment for all employees under the 
requirements of Health, Safety and Environment (“HSE”). We constantly ensure a safe and healthy working environment 
and keep ourselves updated with the latest HSE requirements and regulations through various training programmes.

iv.	 Conducive Working Environment and Accommodation

	 The Group has continually strived to provide conducive working environment for all employees and conducive 
accommodation to its foreign workers. 

v.	 COVID-19 Preventive Measures

	 The Group complies with the Ministry of Health pandemic guidelines and suspended its retails and consignment business 
from 1st July 2021 till 19th August, allow employee to work from home if their job functions permit and strict standard 
operating procedures (SOP) are enforced when employees are required to work in the office. The Office SOP implemented 
including rotational working schedules, demarcation of work areas, no handshaking policy, face masks, hand sanitisation 
and body temperature checked at entrance, office sanitisation etc to reduce risk exposure amongst the employee.

	 Other preventive Measures undertaken by the Group including regular briefing sessions on COVID-19 related matters, 
virtual meetings, arranged vaccination sessions for workers, swab test, vaccination leave, quarantine leave and provided 
quarantine accommodation, face masks, hand sanitisers and COVID-19 self-test kits to employee. 

vi.	 Other Benefits

	 All employees are covered by personal accident insurance in addition to the Social Security Organisation (SOCSO) 
coverage and senior employees are also covered by health and hospitalisation insurance. The Group organises team 
building activities and seminars to create close bond among the employees. The Group also provides transport for its 
factory workers in Nilai and bicycles for its foreign workers who work night shift.

GOVERNANCE 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall corporate strategy and plans for the Group, including adequate enterprise 
risk management, anti-corruption, whistle-blowing policies and internal control framework in place to identify, assess and 
manage the sustainability risks. 

The Managing Director and his team of key management oversee the sustainability related strategies and performance of the 
Group, identified material sustainability matters and reporting to the Board of Directors if the sustainability risks had significant 
Environmental and Social impacts or influence the assessment and decisions of the stakeholders of the Group, advising and 
recommending the sustainability-related strategies including sustainability disclosures to the Board of Directors. 
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Corporate Governance Overview Statement

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad (“the Company”) is fully committed to promote 
and achieve the highest standard of corporate governance and to ensure that the principles and best practices in corporate 
governance as detailed in the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2021 (“the MCCG 2021”) are practised and 
adopted in YOCB and its subsidiaries (“the Group”).

The Board continuously evaluates the Group’s corporate governance practices and procedures with a view to adopt and 
implement the principles and best practices as recommended by the MCCG wherever applicable, as a fundamental part 
of discharging its duties and responsibilities to protect and enhance shareholders’ value. The Board believes that good 
corporate governance results in creation of long term value and benefits for all shareholders.

This corporate governance statement provides an overview disclosure on the application of the practices as detailed in 
the MCCG during the year 2022, which is to be read together with the Corporate Governance Report 2022 which details 
how the Company has applied each Practice of the MCCG, as published in the Company’s website www.yoongonn.com.

SECTION 1: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS

The Board takes full responsibilities for the performance of the Group and guides the Group towards achieving its short 
and long term objectives, setting corporate strategies for growth and new business development while providing advice 
and direction to the management to enable the Group to achieve its corporate goal and objectives.

1.1	 Composition of the Board 

	 The Board currently comprises six (6) members, of whom two (2) are Executive Directors and four (4) Independent 
Non-Executive Directors. This is in line with the Main Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”), which require that at least two (2) or one-third (1/3) of the Board members, 
whichever is the higher, to be Independent Directors.

	 The Board members are persons of high caliber and integrity, diverse disciplines, tapping their respective 
qualifications and experiences in business, commercial and financial aspects. Together, they bring a wide range of 
competencies, experience and expertise which are vital towards the effective discharge of the Board’s responsibilities 
for the successful direction and growth of the Group. 

	 The Independent Directors are independent of management and majority shareholders and do not involve themselves 
in business transactions, management and free from any business or other relationships with the Company, in order 
not to compromise their objectivity. They provide independent views and judgment and at the same time remain in 
a position to fulfil their responsibility to provide check and balance to the Board, and safeguard the interests of the 
shareholders. No individual or group of individuals dominates the Board’s decision making process and the number 
of directors fairly reflects the investment of the shareholders. The Independent Directors, in addition to compliance 
with the criteria set out under the MMLR, have also declared that they will continue to bring independent and 
objective judgement to the Board during the review of Directors’ independence as part of the annual assessment 
carried out by the Nomination Committee. 

	 The Board does not consider it necessary to nominate a Senior Independent Non-Executive Director to whom concerns 
may be conveyed. All members of the Board have demonstrated that they are always available to members and 
stakeholders. All issues can be openly discussed during Board meetings. The Company is not marred with conflicts 
and controversies and also has not received any notice of matters of concern from stakeholders since its listing.

	 All Directors have given their undertaking to comply with the MCCG and Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa 
Securities and all applicable laws and regulations and the Independent Directors have confirmed their independence 
in writing.

	 A brief profile of each Director is presented on the Profile of the Directors in this Annual Report.
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SECTION 1: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

1.2 	 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

	 The positions of the Chairman and the Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer are held by two different individuals 
and their roles are distinguished and separated. The distinct and separate roles of the Chairman and the Managing 
Director/Chief Executive Officer, with a clear division of responsibilities, ensure a balance of power and authority, 
such that no one individuals has unfettered powers of decision-making. 

	 The Chairman is responsible to ensure that the Board functions properly with good corporate governance practices 
and procedures, whilst the Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the vision and strategic 
directions of the Group, assisted by the Chief Financial Officer for implementing the policies and decisions of the 
Board and ensure the day-to-day operations and business activities of the Group in accordance with the standard 
practices set out in the Board Charter. 

1.3	 Board Responsibilities

	 Having recognised the importance of an effective and dynamic Board, the Board members are guided by the area of 
responsibilities as outlined in the Board Charter:-

a.	 Providing direction to and equipping management to formulate a strategic planning process and to adopt the 
recommended strategic plan and business plan aligned to ensure obligations to shareholders and stakeholders 
are met. This includes updating and making changes as required;

b.	 Monitoring group policies and oversees the conduct of the Group’s businesses to evaluate whether the 
businesses are being properly managed;

c.	 Identifying the principle risks and key performance indicators of the Group’s businesses and ensuring the 
implementation of appropriate systems and regular evaluation of systems to manage these risks;

d.	 Establishing a succession plan, including appointing, training, fixing the compensation of and where 
appropriate, replacing senior management;

e.	 Developing and implementing an investors relations programme or shareholder communication policy; and
f.	 Reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the Group’s internal control systems and management information 

systems, including systems for compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines.

1.4 	 Board Charter

	 The Company has in place a Board Charter which sets out the Board’s strategic intent and outlines the Board’s roles 
and responsibilities. The Board Charter is a source reference and primary induction literature, providing insights to 
prospective Board members and senior management.

	 The Board Charter also outlines the roles and responsibilities of various Board Committees, the Chairman and the 
Chief Executive Officer/management of the Company as well as policies and practices in respect of matters such as 
the convening of Board and Board Committees’ meetings. In particular, the Board Charter covers among others the 
following:

a.	 Constitution, Duties and Responsibilities of the Board
b.	 Composition and Board Balance
c.	 Appointment and Tenure of Directors 
d. 	 Chairman and Executive Director Respective Responsibilities
e. 	 Board and Board Committees’ meeting procedures
f. 	 Company Secretary 
g. 	 Supply of Timely and Quality information
h.	 Access to Advice and Procedure
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SECTION 1: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

1.4 	 Board Charter (Cont’d)

	 The Board Charter also outlines the roles and responsibilities of various Board Committees, the Chairman and the 
Chief Executive Officer/management of the Company as well as policies and practices in respect of matters such as 
the convening of Board and Board Committees’ meetings. In particular, the Board Charter covers among others the 
following: (Cont’d)

i. 	 Board committees including Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee’s 
Responsibilities

j. 	 Financial Reporting, Internal Controls and Risk Management 
k. 	 Shareholders and Investor Relations
l. 	 General Meetings 
m. 	 Relationship with Other Stakeholders

	 The Board Charter provides a basis for good governance, effective functioning and accountability of the Company. 
It also ensures that the Company and its subsidiaries are effectively led and controlled with the Board of Directors 
having the ultimate responsibility for maintaining the highest standards of integrity, accountability and corporate 
governance and acting in the interest of the Company as a whole. In particular, it includes the division of responsibilities 
and powers between the Board and management, the different committees established by the Board, and between 
the Chairman and the Executive Directors.

	 The Board reviewed and updated the Board Charter to ensure it complies with the principles in the MCCG 2021. 
The Board Charter would be periodically reviewed and updated in accordance with the changes to the Company’s 
policies, procedures and processes as well as the latest relevant legislations and regulations that may have impact 
on the discharge of the Board’s responsibilities.

	 The Board Charter has wide coverage on the Company’s operations and management and is published on the 
Company’s website www.yoongonn.com.

1.5	 Re-Election of Directors

	 In accordance with the Company’s Article of Associations, all Directors including the Managing Director shall retire 
from the office at least once every three (3) years, but shall be eligible for re-election. Directors who are appointed 
by the Board during the financial year are subject to re-election by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting 
following their appointment.

1.6	 Tenure of Independent Director

	 The Board has adopted a policy and revised its Board Charter accordingly which limit the tenure of its Independent 
Directors up to nine (9) years. An Independent Director should not exceed a cumulative term of nine (9) years and 
upon completion of the nine (9) years, an Independent Director may continue to serve on the Board subject to the 
director’s re-designation as a Non-Independent Director. Otherwise, the Board will justify and seek shareholders’ 
approval at the Annual General Meeting in the event it retains the Director as an Independent Director based on the 
following justification:

a.	 The Board strongly believes that a Director’s independence cannot be determined through the length of service 
only;

b.	 The Board is of the view that there are significant advantages to be gained from long serving independent 
directors as they are able to perform their duty diligently, their practical experiences and understanding about 
the company’s business. These directors have undergone continuous trainings as well as briefings about the 
Company’s business;

Corporate Governance Overview Statement
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SECTION 1: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

1.6	 Tenure of Independent Director (Cont’d)

c.	 The Board is of the view that they are objective in their views and participation in deliberations and decision 
making of the Board and the Board Committees

	 A mandatory 12 years tenure limit for independent directors will be implemented in financial year ending June 2023 
to ensure the Board has the right mix of directors to respond to present challenges and anticipate future risks as well 
as opportunities.

	 The independence of Directors is measured based on the criteria prescribed under the MMLR in which a Director 
should be independent of management and free from any business or other relationship that could interfere with 
the exercise of independent judgement or the ability to act in the best interests of the Company. 

1.7	 Directors’ Training

	 The Group acknowledges the fact that continuous education is vital for the Board members to gain insight into 
the state of economy, technological advances in the core business, latest regulatory updates, and management 
strategies. In compliance with the Main Market Listing Requirements and the relevant Practice Note issued by Bursa 
Securities, all Directors have attended and successfully completed their Mandatory Accreditation Programme within 
the stipulated time frame as prescribed by Bursa Securities.

	 During the financial year ended 30 June 2022, the Directors have attended the following training:-

Name Title of Training Date

Datuk Kamaludin Bin Yusoff Stepping Up Anti-Money Laundering Act Compliance Best 
Practice & Challenges In Identifying the Beneficial Owner

9 June 2022 

Mr. Chew Hon Foong Stepping Up Anti-Money Laundering Act Compliance Best 
Practice & Challenges In Identifying the Beneficial Owner

9 June 2022

Mr. Chew Hon Keong Stepping Up Anti-Money Laundering Act Compliance Best 
Practice & Challenges In Identifying the Beneficial Owner

9 June 2022

Mr. Yeoh Chong Keng Stepping Up Anti-Money Laundering Act Compliance Best 
Practice & Challenges In Identifying the Beneficial Owner

9 June 2022

Mr. Lee Kim Seng Stepping Up Anti-Money Laundering Act Compliance Best 
Practice & Challenges In Identifying the Beneficial Owner

9 June 2022

Datuk Hairuddin Bin Mohamed Stepping Up Anti-Money Laundering Act Compliance Best 
Practice & Challenges In Identifying the Beneficial Owner

9 June 2022

	 The Directors are also aware of their duty to undergo appropriate trainings from time to time to ensure that they 
are equipped to carry out their duties effectively. The Board have discussions with both the internal and external 
auditors to keep themselves abreast of changes in relevant developments in accounting and auditing standards, the 
regulatory and business environments as well as with relevant developments within the industry in which the Group 
operates. Whenever the need arises, the Company will provide briefings to new recruits to the Board, to ensure they 
have a comprehensive understanding on the operations of the Group and the Company.
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SECTION 1: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

1.8	 Supply of information

	 The Board has a formal schedule of matters for decision-making to ensure that the direction and control of the 
Group is firmly in its hands.

	 Prior to each Board meeting, a full agenda together with relevant reports and comprehensive Board papers are 
distributed to all Directors in a timely manner to enable the Directors to consider the matters to be deliberated and 
where necessary, obtain further information. Proceedings of Board meetings are duly recorded and signed by the 
Chairman of the meeting.

	 Every Director has full and timely access to all Group information, records, documents and property to enable them 
to discharge their duties and responsibilities effectively. The Directors, whether collectively or individually, may seek 
independent professional advice in furtherance of their duties at the Company’s expenses, if required.

1.9	 Board Meetings

	 The Board meets on a quarterly basis with additional meetings to be held whenever necessary. There were five (5) 
Board meetings held during the financial year ended 30 June 2022 and the details of attendance are as follows:-

Name of Director

Meetings attended by the Directors/Total 
Number of Meeting held during the Financial 

Year Ended 30 June 2022 % of Attendance

Executive Directors

Mr. Chew Hon Foong 5/5 100%

Mr. Chew Hon Keong 5/5 100%

Non-Executive Directors

Datuk Kamaludin Bin Yusoff 5/5 100%

Datuk Hairuddin Bin Mohamed 5/5 100%

Mr. Yeoh Chong Keng 5/5 100%

Mr. Lee Kim Seng 5/5 100%

	 During the financial year ended 30 June 2022, five (5) Board meetings were convened on 14 September 2021,  
7 October 2021, 23 November 2021, 24 February 2022 and 26 May 2022. 

Corporate Governance Overview Statement
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1.10	 Company Secretary

	 The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board through the Chairman of the Board and Committees on all 
governance matters. The Company Secretary is a central source of information and advice to the Board and its 
Committees on issues relating to adherence to the Board policies, procedures, Companies Act 2016, Bursa Malaysia 
Main Market Listing Requirements and other relevant compliances with laws, rules, and regulations affecting the 
Company.

	 The Company Secretary should advise Directors of their obligations to adhere to matters relating to disclosure 
of interest in securities, any conflict of interest in a transaction involving the Company, prohibition on dealing 
in securities and restrictions on disclosure of price-sensitive information. The Company Secretary maintains the 
statutory records in accordance with legal requirements, organises and facilitates the convening of Board meetings, 
Board committee meetings and general meetings, in consultation with the Board members and the Chairman. The 
Board members have unlimited access to the professional advice and services of the Company Secretary.

1.11	 Board Committees

	 The Board has established the following Committees to assists the Board in discharging its duties and responsibilities 
effectively:

a.	 Audit Committee
b.	 Nomination Committee
c.	 Remuneration Committee

	 The terms of reference of each Board Committee have been approved by the Board. These Committees have the 
authority to examine particular issues and report to the Board with their recommendations. However, the ultimate 
responsibility for the final decision on all matters lies with the Board.

1.12	 Audit Committee

	 The Board had established an Audit Committee with appropriate terms of reference and the members of the Audit 
Committee, currently comprising wholly three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors, are as follows:-

Name Designation Directorship

Mr. Lee Kim Seng Chairman Independent Non-Executive Director

Datuk Hairuddin Bin Mohamed Member Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Yeoh Chong Keng Member Independent Non-Executive Director

	 The Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Directors (“Board”) in its responsibility for overseeing the quality 
and integrity of the accounting, auditing, reporting practices, risk management, internal control framework, 
review of related party transactions, risk management framework and its compliance with the legal and regulatory 
requirements.

	 The members of Audit Committee shall be appointed by the Board from amongst the Directors of the Company and 
shall comprise of at least three (3) members, all of whom must be Non-Executive Directors, with a majority of them 
being independent directors.

Corporate Governance Overview Statement
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SECTION 1: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

1.12	 Audit Committee (Cont’d)

	 The Audit Committee is chaired by an independent director who is distinct from the Chairman of the Board and all 
members of the Audit Committee are financially literate. The Audit Committee has yet to adopt a policy that requires 
a former key audit partner to observe a cooling-off period of at least two (2) years before being appointed as a 
member of the Audit Committee. Nonetheless, the Audit Committee shall observe the said application in the event 
that a former key audit partner is appointed to the Board of the Company. 

	 The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing audit, recurring audit-related and non-audit services provided 
by the external auditors. These recurring audit-related and non-audit services comprise regulatory reviews and 
reporting, interim reviews, tax advisory and compliance services. The terms of engagement for services provided by 
the external auditors are reviewed by the Audit Committee prior to submission to the Board for approval. 

	 The Audit Committee has reviewed the provision of non-audit services by the external auditors during the year 2022 
and concluded that the provision of these services did not compromise the external auditors’ independence and 
objectivity as the amount of the fees paid for these services was not significant when compared to the total fees 
paid to the external auditors. The external auditors had provided a confirmation of their independence to the Audit 
Committee that they are and have been independent throughout the conduct of the audit engagement in accordance 
with the terms of all relevant professional and regulatory requirements.

	 The Audit Committee had conducted annual assessment of the suitability and independence of Messrs. HLB Ler 
Lum Chew PLT having satisfied with their performance, the Audit Committee recommended the re-appointment of 
Messrs. HLB Ler Lum Chew PLT to the Board, upon which the shareholders’ approval will be sought at the AGM. 
Based on the Audit Committee’s assessment of the external auditors, the Board satisfied with the independence, 
quality of service and adequacy of resources provided by the external auditors in carrying out the annual audit for 
financial year 2022. In view thereof, the Board has recommended the re-appointment of the external auditors for the 
approval of shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

	 The composition of the Audit Committee, including its roles and responsibilities and summary of activities carried 
out in year 2022 are set out in the Audit Committee Report of this Annual Report. The terms of reference of the Audit 
Committee is updated and reviewed periodically and is published in the Company’s website at www.yoongonn.com. 

1.13 	The Nomination Committee

	 The Board had established a Nomination Committee with appropriate terms of reference and the members of the 
Committee, currently comprising wholly three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors, are as follows:-

Name Designation Directorship

Mr. Yeoh Chong Keng Chairman Independent Non-Executive Director

Datuk Hairuddin Bin Mohamed Member Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Lee Kim Seng Member Independent Non-Executive Director

	 During the financial year ended 30 June 2022, Nomination Committee meeting was convened on 26 May 2022. 
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SECTION 1: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

1.13 	The Nomination Committee (Cont’d)

	 The primary objectives of the Nomination Committee is to assist the Board of Directors (“Board”) in its responsibility 
in nominating new nominees to the Board of Directors in fulfilling their responsibilities to shareholders in ensuring 
that the Board comprised qualified individuals with the right criteria, qualifications, skills and experience. The 
Nomination Committee shall also assess the performance of the Directors of the Company on an on-going basis 
and review the Directors’ Fit & Proper Policy regularly and recommend changes as and when there are changes to 
the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2021, Main Market Listing Requirements and any legal or relevant 
regulatory changes.

	 The Board shall elect the Nomination Committee members from amongst the Directors of the Company and 
shall comprise of three (3) members, exclusively of Non-Executive Directors, with a majority of whom must be 
independent.

	 No alternate director shall be appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee. The term of office and 
performance of the Nomination Committee and each of its members shall be reviewed by the Board annually to 
determine whether the members have carried out their duties in accordance with their terms of reference.

	 If a member of the Nomination Committee resigns or for any other reason ceases to be a member with the result 
that the number of members is reduced to below three (3), the Board shall, within three (3) months from the date 
of that event, appoint such number of new members as may be required to make up the minimum number of three 
(3) members. In particular, Nomination Committee appointment has been expanded to a more diverse pool of 
candidates instead of being limited to Board and management recommendations.

	 The Nomination Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director identified by the Board, thereby 
enhancing the Committee’s overall effectiveness. The Nomination Committee is responsible for screening, evaluating 
and recommending suitable candidates to the Board for appointment as Directors, as well as filling the vacant seats 
of the Board Committees. In respect of the appointment of Directors, the Company practised a clear and transparent 
nomination process which involves the identification of candidates, evaluation of suitability of candidates, meeting 
up with candidates, final deliberation by the Nomination Committee and recommendation to the Board. 

	 The potential candidates may be proposed by an existing Director, senior management staff, shareholders or third 
parties referrals. Upon completion of the assessment and evaluation of the proposed candidates, the Nomination 
Committee would make its recommendation to the Board. Based on the recommendation, the Board would evaluate 
and decide on the appointment of the proposed candidates.

	 The Nomination Committee has a formal assessment mechanism in place to assess on an annual basis, the 
effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution of each individual director, including the Independent 
Non-Executive Directors. The Committee shall meet at least once a year and additional meetings are held as and 
when required. 

	 At each meeting, the Nomination Committee considered the compositions of the Board and its committees as well 
as their performance. As a result of discussion, succession planning has become an area frequently visited to ensure 
it would not become a material risk to the Company.

	 The Board annually reviews the required mix of skills, experience and other qualities of the Directors to ensure that 
the Board is functioning effectively and efficiently. 

	 The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee and the Directors’ Fit & Proper Policy are updated and reviewed 
periodically and are published on the Company’s website at www.yoongonn.com.
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SECTION 1: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

1.14	 Remuneration Committee

	 The Board has established the Remuneration Committee with appropriate terms of reference and the members of 
the Remuneration Committee comprises of a majority of Independent Directors In compliance with the MCCG as 
follow:

Name Designation Directorship

Mr. Yeoh Chong Keng Chairman Independent Non-Executive Director

Datuk Kamaludin Bin Yusoff Member Independent Non-Executive Chairman

Mr. Chew Hon Foong Member Managing Director and Group Chief Executive Officer

	 During the financial year ended 30 June 2022, Remuneration Committee meeting was convened on 26 May 2022. 

	 The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board of Directors (“Board”) in its responsibility 
in assessing and reviewing the remuneration packages of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Senior 
Management Staff to reflect and align with their respective job scope, responsibilities and performance. 

	 The members of the Remuneration Committee shall be appointed by the Board from amongst the Directors of the 
Company and shall comprise of at least three (3) members. No alternate director shall be appointed as a member of 
the Remuneration Committee. The term of office and performance of the Remuneration Committee and each of its 
members shall be reviewed by the Board annually to determine whether the members have carried out their duties 
in accordance with their terms of reference.

	 If a member of the Remuneration Committee resigns or for any other reason ceases to be a member with the result 
that the number of members is reduced to below three (3), the Board shall, within three (3) months from the date of 
that event, appoint such number of new members as may be required to make up the minimum number of three (3) 
members.

	 The Remuneration Committee reviews annually the performance of the Executive Directors and submits 
recommendations to the Board on specific adjustments in remuneration and/or reward payments that reflect their 
respective contributions for the year, and which are dependent on the performance of the Group, achievement of 
the goals and/or quantified organisational targets as well as strategic initiatives set at the beginning of each year. 

	 The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is updated and reviewed periodically and is published in the 
Company’s website at www.yoongonn.com.

1.15 	Code of Conduct and Ethics

	 The Board has established a Code of Conducts and Ethics (“CCE”) that engender integrity, ethical conduct, 
transparency and fairness in promoting good business conduct and maintaining a healthy corporate culture for ‘the 
Group. 

	 The board, management, employees and other stakeholders are clear on what is considered acceptable behaviour 
and practice in the company. This Code of Ethics outlines a set of principles that affect decision-making and the 
Code of Conducts outlines the following specific behaviour that are required or prohibited as a condition of ongoing 
employment and all employees of the Group are duty-bound to observe and maintain at all times when they are 
acting for the Company.

Corporate Governance Overview Statement



GOVERNANCE 27

Annual Report 2022

SECTION 1: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

1.15 	Code of Conduct and Ethics (Cont’d)

	 The CCE reflects the commitment of the Company to run a business that is ethical, fair, efficient and effective, 
aligned to its business standards and is applicable to all Directors, Management and Employees should be reviewed 
and updated periodically by the Board to incorporate additional obligations and developments.

	 This CCE provides healthier work climate, direction to employees, protect shareholder’ interest, safeguard company’s 
assets in achieving the Group’s corporate goals and objectives. 

	 The CCE is published on the Company’s website at www.yoongonn.com.

1.16 	Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure 

	 The Board is committed to maintain integrity, high standard of work ethics, good corporate governance practices in 
line with the code of conducts & ethics for the Group and has formulated Whistleblowing policy and procedures.

	 The objectives of this Whistleblowing policy and procedures are to provide avenues for employees, stakeholders 
and public members to report suspected and/or known improper or illegal activities, fraud, theft, corruption, 
irregularities, bad practices, abuse, criminal breach of trusts and all wrongdoings (“Misconduct”) that will have 
significant impact on the Group’s operations or resources to the Management or the Risk Management Committee 
so that the Company can conduct investigations and take appropriate corrective and remedial actions.

	 The Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure is published on the Company’s website at www.yoongonn.com.

SECTION 2: REMUNERATION

2.1 	 Remuneration Procedure

	 The remuneration of directors is formulated to be competitive and realistic, emphasis being placed on performance 
and calibre, with aims to attract, motivate and retain Directors with the relevant experience, expertise and quality 
needed to assist in managing the Group effectively. 

	 For Executive Directors, the remuneration packages link rewards to corporate and individual performance whilst 
for the Non-Executive Directors, the level of remuneration is linked to their experience and level of responsibilities 
undertaken.

	 The level of remuneration for the Executive Directors is determined by the Remuneration Committee after giving 
due consideration to the compensation levels for comparable positions among other similar Malaysian public listed 
companies. The determination of the remuneration package of Non-Executive Directors, including Non-Executive 
Chairman should be a matter for the Board as a whole. The individuals concerned should abstain from discussing 
their own remuneration and independent directors’ remuneration must seek shareholders’ approval via annual 
general meeting.

	 The remuneration policy and procedures is published on the Company’s website at www.yoongonn.com.
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SECTION 2: REMUNERATION (CONT’D)

2.2	 Directors and Senior Management Remuneration 

a.	 Directors’ Remuneration

	 Detailed disclosure of Directors Remuneration of each Director during the financial year 2022 are as follows:

Fees
(RM)

Salaries 
and 

Allowances
(RM)

Bonus
(RM)

Other 
Emoluments**

(RM)

Meeting 
Allowances

(RM)
Total
(RM)

Category

Company:

Executive Directors*

Mr. Chew Hon Foong - - - - - -

Mr. Chew Hon Keong - - - - - -

Non-Executive Directors

Datuk Kamaludin Bin Yusoff 54,000 - - - 3,000 57,000

Mr. Yeoh Chong Keng 42,000 - - - 3,000 45,000

Datuk Hairuddin Bin 
Mohamed 39,000 - - - 3,000 42,000

Mr. Lee Kim Seng 42,000 - - - 3,000 45,000

Group:

Executive Directors*

Mr. Chew Hon Foong - 616,260 100,200 101,420 - 817,880

Mr. Chew Hon Keong - 527,940 85,840 89,102 - 702,882

Non-Executive Directors

Datuk Kamaludin Bin Yusoff 54,000 - - - 3,000 57,000

Mr. Yeoh Chong Keng 42,000 - - - 3,000 45,000

Datuk Hairuddin Bin 
Mohamed 39,000 - - - 3,000 42,000

Mr. Lee Kim Seng 42,000 - - - 3,000 45,000

* 	 The remuneration paid to the Executive Directors were in respect of their employment with the Company/
Group. 

**	 Other emoluments include benefits-in-kind, insurance, EPF and SOCSO.
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SECTION 2: REMUNERATION (CONT’D)

2.2	 Directors and Senior Management Remuneration (Cont’d)

b. 	 Top Five (5) Senior Management

	 Top five (5) Senior Management’s Remuneration including Mr. Chew Hon Foong and Mr. Chew Hon Keong 
consisting salary, bonus, benefits in-kind and other emoluments for the financial year ended 30 June 2022 
within the successive bands of RM50,000 are summarised as follows: 

 

Remuneration Band Number of senior management

RM350,001 to RM400,000 2

RM600,000 to RM650,000 1

RM700,000 to RM750,000 1

RM800,001 to RM850,000 1

	 The above disclosure represents a departure from the Principles of MCCG, which prescribes individual disclosure 
of senior management’s remuneration. The Board is of the opinion that individual disclosure would impinge 
upon the senior management’s reasonable right to privacy whilst not significantly enhancing shareholders’ 
information. Moreover, detailed disclosure of remuneration would adversely impact the Company in a highly 
competitive human resources market for requisite professional expertise and it would extensively impair the 
Company’s interests.

SECTION 3: INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP WITH THE STAKEHOLDERS

3.1 	 Communication with Stakeholders

	 The Board recognises the importance of being transparent and accountable to the Company’s stakeholders and 
acknowledges the continuous communication between the Company and stakeholders would facilitate mutual 
understanding of each other’s objectives and expectations. The Board maintains an effective communications policy 
that enables both the Board and the management to communicate effectively with its shareholders, stakeholders 
and the public. The policy effectively interprets the operations of the Group to the shareholders and accommodates 
feedback from shareholders, which are factored into the Group’s business decision.

	 The Board communicates information on the operations, activities and performance of the Group to the shareholders, 
stakeholders and the public through the following:-

a.	 the quarterly and annual financial statements and Report, which contains the financial and operational review 
of the Group’s business, corporate information, financial statements and information on Audit Committee and 
Board of Directors;

b.	 various timely disclosures and announcements made to the Bursa Securities, which include announcements 
on quarterly results;

c.	 the Company website at http://www.yoongonn.com
d.	 meetings with research analysts and fund managers to give them a better understanding of the business 

conducted by the Group in particular, and of the industry in which the Group’s business operates, in general; 
and

e.	 participation in surveys and research conducted by professional organisations as and when such requests 
arise.
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SECTION 3: INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP WITH THE STAKEHOLDERS 
(CONT’D)

3.2	 The Annual General Meeting

	 The Annual General Meeting serves as an important means for shareholders communication. Notice of the Annual 
General Meeting, Annual Reports and Circulars are sent to shareholders twenty eight (28) days prior to the meeting.

	 The company holds its Annual General Meeting in a venue which is not a remote place and is accessible by public 
transport and the Company encourages shareholders whom are unable to attend are entitled to appoint proxy/
proxies to vote on their behalf in their absence. 

	 The Company had leveraged technology to facilitate voting including voting in absentia and remote shareholders’ 
participation at General Meeting and conducted its 13th Annual General Meeting through living streaming from the 
broadcast venue at Boardroom Share Registrars Sdn Bhd (“Boardroom”) and its 14th Annual General Meeting on 
fully virtual via online meeting platform provided by Boardroom.

	 The Company will conduct its 15th Annual General Meeting fully virtual via its online meeting platform provided by 
Boardroom so that Shareholders are able to participate, engage the board and senior management effectively and 
make informed voting decisions at General Meetings.

	 At each Annual General Meeting, the Board presents the progress and performance of the Group’s business and 
encourages attendance and participation of shareholders during questions and answers sessions. The Chairman 
and the Board will respond to all questions raised by the shareholders during the Annual General Meeting.

SECTION 4: EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1 	 Financial Reporting

	 The Board aims to provide and present a clear, balanced and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s financial 
performance and prospects through the quarterly announcement of results to the Bursa Securities as well as 
the Chairman’s Statement, review of operations and annual financial statements in the Annual Report. The Audit 
Committee assists the Board in ensuring accuracy and adequacy of information by overseeing and reviewing the 
financial statements and quarterly announcements prior to the submission to Bursa Securities.

4.2 	 Statement on Directors’ Responsibility in relation to the Audited Financial Statements

	 The Directors are responsible to ensure that the annual financial statements are drawn up in accordance with the 
applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia and Companies Act 2016. A Statement by the Directors of 
their responsibilities in preparing the financial statements is set out on this Annual Report.
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SECTION 4: EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

4.3	 Risk Management and Internal Control Framework

	 The Board acknowledges their responsibilities for the internal control system of the Group, covering not only 
financial controls but also controls relating to operations, compliance and risk management. Information of the 
Group’s internal control and risk management is presented in the Statement of Internal Control of this Annual 
Report.

	 The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound system of risk management and internal control of the 
Group that provides reasonable assurance of effective and efficient business operations, compliance with laws and 
regulations as well as internal procedures and guidelines.

	 The Audit Committee oversees the risk management of the Group and advises the Board on areas of high risk faced 
by the Group and the adequacy of compliance and control throughout the organisation. The Audit Committee also 
reviews the action plans implemented and makes relevant recommendations to the Board to manage residual risks. 
The Group has established a formal risk management framework to oversee the risks management of the Company 
and engaged an external consultant to assist the Company in identifying, assessing and managing the risks in 
areas that are applicable to the Company’s business and ensure that the risk management process in place and 
functioning effectively.

	 The Company continues to maintain and review its internal control procedures to ensure the protection of its assets 
and its shareholders’ investment.

	 The Company has outsourced its internal audit function to a professional services firm, Tricor Axcelasia Sdn Bhd to 
assist the Audit Committee in discharging its duties and responsibilities in respect of reviewing the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

	 The overview of the internal control framework adopted by the Company during the financial year ended 30 June 
2022 is set out in The Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control in this Annual Report.

4.4	 Relationship with the Auditors

	 The Board has established a formal and transparent professional relationship with the Group’s Auditors, both 
internal and external. Whenever the need arises, the Auditors would highlight to the Audit Committee and the Board 
from time to time on matters that require the Board’s attention. The role of the Audit Committee in relation to the 
auditors, both internal and external is set out in the Audit Committee Report of this Annual Report.

This corporate governance overview statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board dated 4 October 
2022.
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Audit Committee Report

The Audit Committee of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad is pleased to present the Audit Committee Report for the  
financial year ended 30 June 2022.

COMPOSITION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The present member of the Audit Committee are:

Name Designation Directorship

Mr. Lee Kim Seng Chairman Independent Non-Executive Director

Datuk Hairuddin Bin Mohamed Member Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Yeoh Chong Keng Member Independent Non-Executive Director

During the financial year ended 30 June 2022, five (5) Audit Committee meetings were convened on 14 September 2021, 
7 October 2021, 23 November 2021, 24 February 2022 and 26 May 2022. 

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

(a)	 Terms of Membership

	 The Members of Audit Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors from amongst the Directors of 
the Company and shall comprise of at least three (3) members, all of whom must be Non-Executive Directors 
with a majority of them being Independent Directors. The Audit Committee shall elect a Chairman from among its 
members and the elected Chairman shall be an Independent Director. The Board shall at all the times ensure that at 
least one (1) member of the Audit Committee:-

•	 must be a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA”); or
•	 if he is not a member of the MIA, he must have at least three (3) years’ working experience; or
•	 passed the examinations specified in Part 1 of the First Schedule of the Accountants Act 1967; or
•	 must be a member of one of the associations of accountants specified in Part II of the First Schedule of the 

Accountants Act 1967; or 
•	 must hold a degree/master/doctorate in accounting or finance and have at least 3 years’ post qualification 

experience in accounting or finance; or
•	 must have at least 7 years’ experience being a chief financial officer of a corporation or having the function of 

being primarily responsible for the management of the financial affairs of a corporation; or
•	 fulfills such other requirements as prescribed or approved by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa 

Securities”)

	 No alternate director shall be appointed as a member of the Audit Committee. The term of office and performance 
of the Audit Committee and each of its members shall be reviewed by the Board annually to determine whether the 
members have carried out their duties in accordance with their terms of reference.

	 If a member of the Audit Committee resigns or for any other reason ceases to be a member with the result that the 
number of members is reduced to below three (3), the Board shall, within three (3) months from the date of that event, 
appoint such number of new members as may be required to make up the minimum number of three (3) members.
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TERMS OF REFERENCE OF AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONT’D)

(b)	 Meetings and Quorum of the Audit Committee

	 The quorum for a meeting of the Audit Committee shall consist of not less than two (2) members, majority of 
members present must be Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Company Secretary shall act as secretary of 
the Audit Committee and shall be responsible, in conjunction with the Chairman, for drawing up the agenda and 
circulating it prior to each meeting.

	 The Audit Committee met five (5) times during the financial year ended 30 June 2022. The details of the attendance 
of the meetings are disclosed under the heading “Attendance of the Audit Committee Meetings” of this Annual 
Report.

	 The Audit Committee may require the attendance of the executive Directors, Chief Financial Officer and senior 
management staff deemed necessary together with a representative or representatives from the external auditors 
and/or internal auditors.

	 In all five (5) meetings, the Chief Financial Officer was present to report on the results of the Group as well as to answer 
questions posed by the Audit Committee in relation to the results to be announced. During these Audit Committee 
meetings, representatives from the internal auditors had also been present to provide updates on the progress of 
internal audit work that have been conducted to date, and to also provide comments and recommendations, where 
applicable to improve the risk management framework supporting the activities of the Group.

	 In the event the elected Chairman is not able to attend a meeting, a member of the Audit Committee shall be 
nominated as Chairman for the meeting. The nominated Chairman shall be an Independent Non-Executive Director.

	 Subject to the notice and quorum requirements as provided in the Terms of Reference, meeting of the Audit 
Committee may be held and conducted through the telephone or any communication equipment which allows all 
persons participating in the meeting to hear each other. A person so participating shall be deemed to be present in 
person at the meeting and shall be entitled to vote and be counted in a quorum accordingly.

	 In any event, should the external auditors request, the Chairman of the Audit Committee shall convene a meeting 
of the committee to consider any matter the external auditors believe should be brought to the attention of the 
Directors or shareholders.

(c)	 Functions of the Audit Committee

	 The duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee include the following:-

1.	 to consider the appointment of the external auditor, the audit fee and any questions of resignation or dismissal;

2.	 to discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the nature and scope of the audit, and ensure 
co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved;

3.	 to discuss with the external auditor on the evaluation of the system of internal controls and the assistance 
given by the employees to the external auditors;

4.	 to review and report to the Board if there is reason (supported by grounds) to believe that the external auditor 
is not suitable for reappointment;
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TERMS OF REFERENCE OF AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONT’D)

(c)	 Functions of the Audit Committee (Cont’d)

5.	 To review the quarterly and audited annual financial statements of the Company and the Group where 
necessary, together with the external auditor, focus particularly on the following before recommending to the 
Board for approval 

i.	 Any significant changes or implementation of major accounting policies and practices;
ii.	 Significant matters highlighted including financial reporting issues, major judgmental areas made by 

management, significant and unusual events or transactions, and how these matters are addressed;
iii.	 Significant adjustments arising from the audit;
iv.	 Compliance with applicable approved accounting standards, Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing 

Requirements and other statutory requirements; and
v.	 The Going concern assumption.

6.	 to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim and final audit, and any matter the auditors may 
wish to discuss (in the absence of the management where necessary);

7.	 to review the external auditor’s management letter and management’s response;

8.	 to do the following in relation to the internal audit functions:-

i.	 review the adequacy of the scope, functions, competency and resources of the internal audit function, 
and that it has the necessary authority to carry out its work;

ii.	 review the internal audit programme and the results of the internal audit processes or investigation 
undertaken and where necessary to ensure the appropriate action is taken on the recommendations of 
the internal audit function;

iii.	 review any appraisal or assessment of the performance of the internal audit function;
iv.	 approve any appointment or termination of the internal auditor;
v.	 inform itself of resignations of internal auditor and provide the resigning internal auditor an opportunity 

to submit his reasons for resigning.
 	

9.	 to consider the major findings of internal investigations and the management’s response; and 

10.	 to consider any other functions or duties as may be agreed by the Committee and the Board.

(d)	 Rights of the Audit Committee

	 The Audit Committee has ensured that it shall, wherever necessary and reasonable for the performance of its duties 
and in accordance with a procedure determined by the Board:-

1.	 have authority to investigate any matter within its terms of reference;

2.	 have the resources which are required to perform its duties;

3.	 have full and unrestricted access to any information pertaining to the Company and Group;

4.	 have direct communication channels with the external auditors and person(s) carrying out the internal audit 
function or activity (if any);
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TERMS OF REFERENCE OF AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONT’D)

(d)	 Rights of the Audit Committee (Cont’d)

5.	 be able to obtain independent professional or other advice when needed; and

6.	 be able to convene meetings with the external auditors, the internal auditors or both, excluding the attendance 
of other directors and employees of the Group, whenever deemed necessary.

(e)	 Procedure of Audit Committee

	 The Audit Committee regulates its own procedures by:-

1.	 the calling of meetings;

2.	 the notice to be given of such meetings;

3.	 the voting and proceedings of such meetings;

4.	 the keeping of minutes; and

5.	 the custody, protection and inspection of such minutes.

(f)	 Review of the Audit Committee

	 The Board of Directors shall ensure that the term of office and performance of the Audit Committee and each of its 
members are being reviewed at least once in every three years to determine whether such an Audit Committee and 
members have carried out their duties in accordance with their terms of reference.

(g)	 Attendance of the Audit Committee Meetings

	 The details of attendance of each Audit Committee member in the Audit Committee meetings held during the 
financial year ended 30 June 2022 are as follows:-

Name 

Meeting attended by the Directors/Total 
Number of Meeting held during the financial 

year ended 30 June 2022 % of Attendance

Mr. Lee Kim Seng 5/5 100%

Datuk Hairuddin Bin Mohamed 5/5 100%

Mr. Yeoh Chong Keng 5/5 100%

(h)	 Summaries of Activities of the Audit Committee

	 During the financial year up to the date of this Report, the Audit Committee carried out the following activities in 
discharging their duties and responsibilities:

1.	 Control

	 Evaluated the overall effectiveness of the system of internal control through the review of the results of work 
performed by the internal and external auditors and discussions with the key management.
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(h)	 Summaries of Activities of the Audit Committee (Cont’d)

2.	 Financial Results

	 Reviewed quarterly results and audited annual financial statements of the Group and Company before 
recommending to the Board for release to Bursa Securities. The review should focus primarily on:

a)	 major judgmental areas, significant and unusual events;

b)	 significant adjustments resulting from audit;

c)	 the going concern assumptions;

d)	 compliance with applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia; and

e)	 compliance with Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities and other regulatory requirements.

3.	 External Audit

a)	 reviewed with the external auditors, their audit plan for the financial year ended 30 June 2022 to ensure 
that their scope of work adequately covers the activities of the Group;

b)	 reviewed the results and issues arising from their audit of the annual financial statements and their 
resolution of such issues as highlighted in their report to the Committee; and

c)	 reviewed their performance and independence before recommending to the Board their reappointment 
and remuneration.

d)	 reviewed with the external auditors for the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control of the 
Group for inclusion in the Annual Report.

4.	 Internal Audit

a)	 reviewed with the internal auditors, their audit plan for the financial year ended 30 June 2022 ensuring 
that principal risk areas were adequately identified and covered the plan;

b)	 reviewed the recommendations by internal audit, representations made and corrective actions taken by 
the management in addressing and resolving issues as well as ensuring that all issues were adequately 
addressed on a timely basis;

c)	 reviewed the competencies of the internal auditors to execute the plan, the audit programs used in the 
execution of the internal audit work and results of their work; and

d)	 reviewed the adequacy of the terms of reference of internal audit.

5. 	 Related Party Transactions/Conflict of Interest Situations

	 Reviewed any related party transactions and conflict of interest situations that may arise within the Group 
including any transaction, procedure or course of conduct that raises questions of management integrity.

Audit Committee Report
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Statement on Risk Management 
and Internal Control

INTRODUCTION

The Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance requires listed companies to maintain a sound system of risk management 
and internal control to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets. The Board of Yoong Onn 
Corporation Berhad is committed to maintain a sound system of risk management and internal control in the Group. Set 
out below is the Board of Directors’ “Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control” which has been prepared 
in accordance with the Guidance for Directors of Public Listed Companies on the Statement on Risk Management and 
Internal Control which outlines the frameworks and processes the Board is to adopt in maintaining the adequacy and 
integrity of risk management and the system of internal control of the Group.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors (“Board”) is responsible for the adequacy and effectiveness of the Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad 
(“the Group”) risk management and internal control system. The Board ensures that the system manages the Group’s key 
areas of risk within an acceptable risk profile to increase the likelihood that the Group’s policies and business objectives 
will be achieved. The Board continually reviews the system to ensure it provides a reasonable but not absolute assurance 
against material misstatement of management and financial information and records or against financial losses or fraud.

The Board has established an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by 
the Group and this process includes enhancing the risk management and internal control system as and when there are 
changes to the business environment or regulatory guidelines. Management assists the Board in the implementation of 
the Board’s policies and procedures on risk management and internal control by identifying and assessing the risks faced, 
and in the design, operation and monitoring of suitable internal controls to mitigate and control these risks. 

The Board is of the view that the risk management and internal control system in place for the year under review and up 
to the date of issuance of the financial statements is adequate and effective to safeguard the shareholders’ investment, 
the interests of customers, regulators and employees, and the Group’s assets.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Board is aware that a sound system of risk management and internal control should be embedded in the operations 
of the Group and form part of its culture. This system should be capable of responding quickly to evolving risks to the 
business arising from factors within the Group and changes in the business environment. It should include procedures 
for reporting immediately to appropriate levels of management any significant control failings or weaknesses that are 
identified together with details of corrective action being taken. The Board has established a Risk Management Framework 
which consists of a structured approach covering the identification of risks, assessment of risks and reviewing and 
implementing strategies to mitigate those risks. The Board has established a Risk Management Committee comprising of 
Executive Director and Senior Management to oversee the risk management initiatives of the Group. The Board and the 
Audit Committee regularly reviews this process to ensure the effectiveness of its risk management.
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and Internal Control

INTERNAL CONTROL AND INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Board has outsourced the internal audit function of the Group to an independent professional firm, Tricor Axcelasia 
Sdn Bhd for the year ended 30 June 2022 for fees of RM40,000. The audit planning memorandum presented annually 
by the Internal Auditors is adopted by the Audit Committee to review the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal 
control.

The Group’s system of internal control comprises but not limited to the following activities:-

•	 The Audit Committee comprises solely of Independent Non-Executive Directors with full access to both the internal 
and external auditors. Audit Committee meetings are held separately from Board meetings;

•	 Periodic internal audits are conducted by the internal auditors to monitor compliance to established procedures and 
to review internal control measures. The internal audit reports would highlight any significant risks, non-compliances 
and areas for improvements.

•	 Each core business process function is audited on a rotational basis and the Audit Committee reviews the internal 
audit issues identified, and together with the Management recommends improvements to the Board;

•	 Follow up reviews are conducted on previous audit issues highlighted to ensure that the recommendations 
highlighted had been addressed by Management.

REVIEW OF THE STATEMENT BY EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The external auditors have reviewed this Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control pursuant to the scope 
set out in Audit and Assurance Practice Guide (“AAPG”) 3 issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountant (“MIA”) for 
inclusion in the annual report for the year ended 30 June 2022 and reported to the Board that nothing has come to their 
attention that causes them to believe that the statement is inconsistent with their understanding of the process adopted 
by the Board in reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system. 

CONCLUSION

During the financial year under review, the Board is satisfied that no material losses, deficiencies or errors were arising 
from any inadequacy or failure of the Group’s internal control system that will require disclosure in the Annual Report.  
The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have provided assurance to the Board that the Group’s risk 
management and internal control system, in all matters aspects is operating adequately and effectively.

The Board will continue to take measures to strengthen the system of internal control maintained by the Group and 
ensure shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets are consistently safeguarded.

This corporate governance statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board dated 4 October 2022.
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Directors’ Responsibility 
Statement

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad (“YOCB”) and its subsidiary companies (“the Group”) as at the end of the 
financial year, and of the results and cash flows for the financial year ended. 

Therefore, in preparing the financial statements of YOCB for the year ended 30 June 2022, the Directors have:

•	 adopted appropriate accounting policies and applied them on a consistent basis;

•	 made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; 

•	 ensured applicable approved accounting standards have been followed and any material departures have been 
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

•	 ensured the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group and the Company keep proper accounting and other records 
which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Group and the Company, and ensuring that the 
financial statements comply with the provisions of the Companies Act 2016. The Directors have overall responsibilities for 
taking such steps to safeguard the assets of the Group, and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

This above statement is made in accordance with the resolution passed at the Board of Directors’ meeting held on  
4 October 2022.
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1)	 Share Buy-Backs

	 There was no share buy-backs by the Company during the financial year ended 30 June 2022.

	 All shares purchased by the Company were retained as treasury shares in accordance with Section 127(4) of the 
Companies Act 2016. As at 30 June 2022, the number of treasury shares was 1,347,300. None of the treasury shares 
were re-sold or cancelled during the financial year under review.

2)	 Options, Warrants or Convertible Securities

	 There were no options, warrants or convertible securities issued during the financial year ended 30 June 2022.

3)	 Sanctions and/or Penalties 

	 There were no sanctions and/or penalties imposed on the Company and its subsidiaries, Directors or management 
by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year.

4)	 Non-Audit Fees

	 The amount of non-audit fees pay/payable to External Auditors, Messrs’ HLB Ler Lum Chew PLT for the current 
financial year is as follows:-

The Group The Company

Audit Fees 130,000 29,000

Non-Audit Fees 20,000 5,000

5)	 Variation in Results

	 There were no variations of 10% or more between the audited results of the Group for the financial year ended  
30 June 2022 and the unaudited results announced on 25 August 2022.

6)	 Material Contracts with Related Parties

	 There were no material contracts entered into by the Company and its subsidiaries involving directors’ and major 
shareholders’ interest which were still subsisting as at the end of the financial year under review or which were 
entered into since the end of the previous financial year except as disclosed in the Financial Statements.

7)	 Corporate Social Responsibility

	 The Group recognises its role as a responsible corporate citizen and no company can exist by maximising shareholders 
value alone. In this regards, the needs and interests of other stakeholders are also taken into consideration.

a)	 Environment

	 The Group has always complied with the relevant environmental legislation and promoting environmental 
awareness as part of its commitment to protect the environment and contribute towards sustainable development. 

	 With the growing threat of climate change, the Group has engaged a solar service provider and system 
integrator to design, supply and install two (2) solar photovoltaic module systems (“Solar Panel Systems”) 
onto its factory and warehouse in Nilai. The Solar Panel Systems generate electricity from sunlight for its 
factory and warehouse operations and expected to save more than 20% of the Group’s energy costs.
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7)	 Corporate Social Responsibility (Cont’d)

b)	 Safety and Health

	 The Group is committed to provide a safe and healthy working environment for all employees under the 
requirements of Health, Safety and Environment (“HSE”). We constantly ensure a safe and healthy working 
environment and keep ourselves updated with the latest HSE requirements and regulations through various 
training programs.

c)	 Charity Works and Donations to Charitable Organisations

	 The Company has made cash donations to Damai Disabled Person Association Malaysia, Hospis Malaysia, 
Malaysian Association for The Prevention of Tuberculosis, Malaysian Association for the Blind, Montfort Youth 
Centre, National Diabetes Institute, Pusat Jagaan Rumah Orang-Orang Tua (PKK) SIMEE, Society of The Blind 
In Malaysia, Shelter Home for Children, Persatuan Buddhis Jonq Shan, Loving Heart Services and Yayasan 
Jantung Malaysia.

d)	 Employees

	 The Group places strong emphasis on personal development and provides various training courses for its 
employees to enhance and upgrade their work skills for better opportunities of career advancements. The 
Group arranged vaccination sessions for workers, swab test, vaccination leave, quarantine leave and provided 
quarantine accommodation, face masks, hand sanitisers and self-test kits to employee in relation to COVID-19 
pandemic.

8)	 Profit Forecast/Profit Guarantee

	 The Company did not provide any profit forecast/guarantee in any public documents during the financial year ended 
30 June 2022.

9)	 Recurrent Related Parties Transactions

	 The breakdown of the aggregate value of transactions conducted during the financial year ended 30 June 2022 is as 
follows:

Transacting companies 
within YOCB Group

Transacting 
Related Party

Nature of 
Transactions

Amount of 
Transactions (RM)

Sleep Focus Sdn Bhd NC Twenty Eight Glory 
Sdn Bhd

Supply of home linen 
products

1,519,230

Monsieur (M) Sdn Bhd NC Twenty Eight Glory 
Sdn Bhd

Supply of home linen 
products

373,042

Syarikat Yoong Onn Sdn Bhd NC Twenty Eight Glory 
Sdn Bhd

Supply of home linen 
products

9,450

1,901,722

	 At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held on 22 November 2022, the Company intends to seek its 
shareholders’ approval for the proposed renewal of shareholders’ mandate for recurrent related party transactions of 
revenue or trading nature, which are necessary for its day-to-day operations and in the ordinary course of business, 
with related parties as set in the Circular to Shareholders dated 21 October 2022 which is dispatched together with 
this Annual Report.
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Directors’ 
Report

The directors hereby submit their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2022.

DIRECTORS 

The directors who served on the Board of the Company during the financial year and during the period commencing from 
the end of the financial year and ending on the date of this Report are:

Chew Hon Foong Chew Hon Keong
Datuk Kamaludin Bin Yusoff Datuk Hairuddin Bin Mohamed 
Yeoh Chong Keng Lee Kim Seng

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of directors of the subsidiaries (excluding Directors who are also Directors of the Company) in office 
during the financial year until the date of this Report:-

Chew Hon Yoong Chew Hon Yoon (Resigned on 20 January 2022)
Chew Zhi Kan (Appointed on 20 January 2022)

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in the business of investment holding and the provision of management services. 
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 6 to the Financial Statements. There have been no significant 
changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year. 

RESULTS

THE GROUP
RM’000

THE COMPANY
RM’000

Profit after taxation attributable to owners of the Company 33,872 15,849

DIVIDENDS

Since the end of the previous financial year, the Company paid:

i)	 an interim single tier dividend of 2.5 sen per ordinary share amounting to RM3,966,319 in respect of the financial 
year ended 30 June 2021; and

ii)	 a final single tier dividend of 1.5 sen per ordinary share amounting to RM2,379,792 in respect of the financial year 
ended 30 June 2021.

The Company declared an interim single tier dividend of 3.0 sen per ordinary share amounting to RM4,759,581 in respect 
of the financial year ended 30 June 2022. 
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DIVIDENDS (CONT’D)

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a final single tier dividend of 3.0 sen per ordinary share amounting to 
RM4,759,581 in respect of the current financial year will be proposed for shareholders’ approval. The financial statements 
for the current financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will 
be accounted for in the financial year ending 30 June 2023.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES OR DEBENTURES

The following Directors of the Company who held office at the end of the financial year had, according to the register 
required to be kept under Section 59 of the Companies Act 2016, interests in the shares of the Company and related 
companies as follows:-

Number Of Ordinary Shares

At
1.7.2021 Bought Sold

At
30.6.2022

Direct Interests

Datuk Kamaludin Bin Yusoff 74,033 30,000 - 104,033

Yeoh Chong Keng 154,000 - - 154,000

Lee Kim Seng 200,000 20,000 - 220,000

Indirect Interests

Chew Hon Foong 84,000,231* - - 84,000,231*

Chew Hon Keong 84,000,231* - - 84,000,231*

*	 -	 By virtue of their shareholdings in the holding company, Chew Hon Foong and Chew Hon Keong are deemed  
	 to have interests in shares in the Company and its related corporations to the extent of the holding company’s  
	 interests, in accordance with Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016. 

The other director holding office at the end of the financial year had no interest in shares in the Company or its related 
corporations during the financial year.

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE 

No indemnity has been given to or insurance effected for any of the directors or officers of the Company during the 
financial period.

Directors’ Report
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DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangement subsisted to which the Company is a party, with the object or 
objects of enabling Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures 
of the Company or any other body corporate.

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than 
the benefits included in the aggregate amount of remuneration received or due and receivable by the Directors as shown 
below) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm of which 
he is a member, or with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest except that certain Directors received 
remuneration from the Company’s related corporations.

THE GROUP
RM’000

THE COMPANY
RM’000

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors fee 177 177

Short term employee benefits 1,503 12

Non-monetary benefits-in-kind 30 -

1,710 189

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

All material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year are disclosed in the financial statements. 

ISSUES OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES
 
During the financial year:-

(a)	 there were no changes in the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company; and

(b)	 there were no issues of debentures by the Company.

TREASURY SHARES

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company held as treasury shares a total of 1,347,300 of its 160,000,000 issued 
and fully paid-up ordinary shares. The treasury shares are held at a carrying amount of RM822,534. Relevant details on 
the treasury shares are disclosed in the Note 15 to the Financial Statements.

OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES 

During the financial year, no options were granted by the Company to any person to take up any unissued shares in the 
Company.



FINANCIALS46

Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad

BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were prepared, the directors took reasonable steps to 
ascertain that action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of allowance for impairment 
losses on receivables, and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and that adequate allowance 
had been made for impairment losses on receivables.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances that would require the further writing off of 
bad debts, or the additional allowance for impairment losses on receivables in the financial statements of the Group and 
of the Company.

CURRENT ASSETS

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were prepared, the directors took reasonable steps to 
ascertain that any current assets, which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business, including their 
value as shown in the accounting records of the Group and of the Company, have been written down to an amount which 
they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render the values attributed to 
the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

VALUATION METHODS

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which render adherence to 
the existing methods of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate. 

CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES

At the date of this report, there does not exist:

(i)	 any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year which 
secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(ii)	 any contingent liability of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year.

No contingent or other liability of the Group and of the Company has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable 
within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the directors, will or may 
substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations when they fall due. 

CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or the 
financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated in the financial statements 
misleading. 

Directors’ Report
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ITEMS OF AN UNUSUAL NATURE

The results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not, in the opinion of the 
directors, substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, transaction 
or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect substantially the results of the 
operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year.

HOLDING COMPANY

The Directors regard Casatex Cosmo Sdn. Bhd., a company incorporated in Malaysia, as the Company’s holding company. 

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Auditors’ remuneration are as follows:-

THE GROUP
RM’000

THE COMPANY
RM’000

HLB Ler Lum Chew PLT

- Audit fee 130 29

- Non-audit fee 20 5

150 34

AUDITORS

The auditors, HLB Ler Lum Chew PLT, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors,

-----------------------------------------------------	 ----------------------------------------------------
Chew Hon Foong	 Chew Hon Keong

Dated: 4 October 2022
Kuala Lumpur
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Directors

Statutory 
Declaration

We, Chew Hon Foong and Chew Hon Keong, being two of the Directors of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad, do  
hereby state that, in the opinion of the Directors, the accompanying financial statements are drawn up in accordance 
with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the 
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the 
Company as of 30 June 2022 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors,

-----------------------------------------------------	 ----------------------------------------------------
Chew Hon Foong	 Chew Hon Keong

Dated: 4 October 2022
Kuala Lumpur	

I, Tan Peng, being the Officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Yoong Onn Corporation  
Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief the accompanying financial 
statements are correct, and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of 
the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared 
by the abovenamed Tan Peng
at Kuala Lumpur on 4 October 2022

	 ----------------------------------------------------
	 Tan Peng (MIA 6063)

Before me,

Amir Bin Ismail
No. W 800
Commissioner for Oaths
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Independent 
Auditors’ Report

to the Members of  Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad, which comprise the Statements of  
Financial Position as at 30 June 2022 of the Group and of the Company, the Statements of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income, Statements of Changes in Equity and Statements of Cash Flows of the Group and of the Company 
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, as set out 
on pages 52 to 105.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company 
as of 30 June 2022 and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance 
with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the 
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on 
Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct 
and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) 
(“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of inventories
(Refer to Note 5(a)(ii), 5(h) and 9 to the Financial Statements)

As at financial year end, the carrying amount of inventories amounted to RM68.8 million. Inventories are stated in the 
financial statements at the lower of cost and net realisable value. There is a risk that certain inventories of the Group may 
not be recoverable due to old and out of design home linen as well as economic deterioration of the linens’ condition over 
time. This in combination with the significant share of inventories as part of total assets, made us conclude that valuation 
of inventories is a key audit matter.

How our audit addresses this matter

Our audit procedures to validate the valuation of inventories, we 
•	 understood and assessed the effectiveness of internal controls in place to assess the valuation of inventories;
•	 discussed with management and obtained an understanding of the process implemented by management over the 

determination of the lower of cost and net realisable value of inventories;
•	 assessed the historical accuracy and reasonableness of inventory provisioning. We reviewed the ageing of inventories 

and analysed the level of slow-moving and out-of-season inventories and the associated write down; and
•	 tested inventories for sales subsequent to the year end to supporting documentation and assessed that the carrying 

amount of inventories is at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the Company and our 
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company 
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial 
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible 
for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the 
Group and of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing the 
Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the 
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on 
Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Group’s and of the Company’s internal control.

Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of  Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont’d)

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by the Directors.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Group’s or the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Group or the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear 
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the 
audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication.

Other Matter

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the Companies 
Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of 
this report.

HLB LER LUM CHEW PLT	 LER JI-YONG
201906002362 & AF 0276	 03439/05/2023 J
Chartered Accountants	 Chartered Accountant

Dated: 4 October 2022
Kuala Lumpur
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NOTE

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Investments in subsidiaries 6 - - 57,565 57,565

Property, plant and equipment 7 55,046 53,486 - -

Right-of-use assets 8 6,404 6,259 - -

Deferred tax assets 16 2,643 3,570 - -

64,093 63,315 57,565 57,565

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories 9 68,792 74,694 - -

Trade receivables 10 34,806 20,085 - -

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 11 8,708 7,617 92 53

Income tax assets 840 480 - -

Short-term investment 12 73,735 88,485 40,359 44,386

Deposits with financial institutions 13 42,020 4,991 11,000 -

Cash and bank balances 17,862 20,387 2,993 499

246,763 216,739 54,444 44,938

TOTAL ASSETS 310,856 280,054 112,009 102,503

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2022

NOTE

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Share capital 14 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000

Treasury shares 15 (823) (823) (823) (823)

Retained profits 198,052 171,319 27,991 19,281

TOTAL EQUITY 277,229 250,496 107,168 98,458

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Deferred tax liabilities 16 1,617 1,203 - -

Provision 17 386 385 - -

Long-term borrowings 18 73 895 - -

Lease liabilities 8 2,732 1,987 - -

4,808 4,470 - -

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables 19 1,950 2,891 - -

Other payables and accruals 11,054 7,629 77 71

Contract liabilities 20 407 373 - -

Dividend payable 4,759 3,966 4,759 3,966

Income tax liabilities 2,188 1,480 5 8

Short-term borrowings 18 4,669 4,340 - -

Lease liabilities 8 3,792 4,409 - -

28,819 25,088 4,841 4,045

TOTAL LIABILITIES 33,627 29,558 4,841 4,045

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 310,856 280,054 112,009 102,503
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Statements of Profit or Loss 
and Other Comprehensive Income
for the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2022

NOTE

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

REVENUE 21 227,969 205,659 16,043 11,762

COST OF SALES (124,460) (118,147) - -

GROSS PROFIT 103,509 87,512 16,043 11,762

OTHER INCOME 2,272 1,696 891 767

105,781 89,208 16,934 12,529

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES (16,860) (13,207) - -

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING 
EXPENSES (43,598) (44,804) (944) (830)

FINANCE COSTS (470) (642) - -

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 22 44,853 30,555 15,990 11,699

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 23 (10,981) (7,438) (141) (53)

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 33,872 23,117 15,849 11,646

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME,  
NET OF TAX - - - -

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR 33,872 23,117 15,849 11,646

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION ATTRIBUTABLE TO:-

Owners of the Company 33,872 23,117 15,849 11,646

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:-

Owners of the Company 33,872 23,117 15,849 11,646

EARNINGS PER SHARE (SEN) 24

- Basic/Diluted 21 15

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of 
Changes in Equity

for the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2022

NOTE

NON-DISTRIBUTABLE DISTRIBUTABLE

TOTAL
EQUITY
RM’000

SHARE
CAPITAL
RM’000

TREASURY
SHARES
RM’000

RETAINED
PROFITS

RM’000

THE GROUP

Balance at 1.7.2020 80,000 (823) 154,548 233,725

Profit after taxation/Total comprehensive 
income for the financial year - - 23,117 23,117

Distributions to owners of the Company:

- Dividends 25 - - (6,346) (6,346)

Balance at 30.6.2021 80,000 (823) 171,319 250,496

Profit after taxation/Total comprehensive 
income for the financial year - - 33,872 33,872

Distributions to owners of the Company:

- Dividends 25 - - (7,139) (7,139)

Balance at 30.6.2022 80,000 (823) 198,052 277,229

THE COMPANY

Balance at 1.7.2020 80,000 (823) 13,981 93,158

Profit after taxation/Total comprehensive 
income for the financial year - - 11,646 11,646

Distributions to owners of the Company:

- Dividends 25 - - (6,346) (6,346)

Balance at 30.6.2021 80,000 (823) 19,281 98,458

Profit after taxation/Total comprehensive 
income for the financial year - - 15,849 15,849

Distributions to owners of the Company:

- Dividends 25 - - (7,139) (7,139)

Balance at 30.6.2022 80,000 (823) 27,991 107,168
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The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

CASH FLOWS FROM/(FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation 44,853 30,555 15,990 11,699

Adjustments for:-

(Write-back)/Allowance for impairment losses on 
receivables (net)  (1,031) 122 - -

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,687 3,773 - -

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 5,040 6,646 - -

Dividend income - - (15,000) (11,100)

Gain on disposal of plant and equipment (3) (26) - -

Interest expense 189 180 - -

Lease interest expense 281 462 - -

Interest income (1,679) (1,579) (891) (767)

Plant and equipment written off 106 22 - -

(Write-back)/Write-down of inventories (3,070) 2,364 - -

Unrealised (gain)/loss on foreign exchange (249) 119 - -

COVID-19 related rent concession received (730) (567) - -

Operating profit/(loss) before working capital 
changes 47,394 42,071 99 (168)

Inventories 8,972 6,013 - -

Receivables (14,686) 7,253 (38) (6)

Payables 2,649 3,360 5 -

CASH FROM/(FOR) OPERATIONS 44,329 58,697 66 (174)

Income tax paid (9,292) (6,524) (144) (57)

Interest paid (179) (168) - -

NET CASH FROM/(FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
CARRIED FORWARD 34,858 52,005 (78) (231)
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Statements of Cash Flows
for the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2022

NOTE

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

NET CASH FROM/(FOR) OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES BROUGHT FORWARD 34,858 52,005 (78) (231)

CASH FLOWS FROM/(FOR) INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES

Interest received 1,679 1,579 891 767

Dividend received - - 15,000 11,100

Purchase of plant and equipment (5,371) (508) - -

Proceeds from disposal of plant and 
equipment 35 34 - -

NET CASH FROM/(FOR) INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES (3,657) 1,105 15,891 11,867

CASH FLOWS FROM/(FOR) FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid (6,346) (4,759) (6,346) (4,759)

Repayment of bank borrowings (800) (777) - -

Drawdown of bankers’ acceptances 307 2,338 - -

Payment of lease obligations (4,608) (6,507) - -

NET CASH FOR FINANCING ACTIVITIES (11,447) (9,705) (6,346) (4,759)

NET CHANGES IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS 19,754 43,405 9,467 6,877

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 
BEGINNING OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 113,863 70,458 44,885 38,008

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR 26 133,617 113,863 54,352 44,885
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Notes to the Statements of Cash Flows:-

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

Group

At
1.7.2021
RM’000

Principal
and

interest 
payments

RM’000
Drawdown

RM’000

Non-cash 
changes
Interest 

expense
RM’000

At 
30.6.2022

RM’000

Bank borrowings

- bankers’ acceptances 3,539 (15,023) 15,190 140 3,846

- term loan 1,696 (839) - 39 896

5,235 (15,862) 15,190 179 4,742

Group

At
1.7.2020
RM’000

Principal
and

interest 
payments

RM’000
Drawdown

RM’000

Non-cash 
changes
Interest 

expense
RM’000

At 
30.6.2021

RM’000

Bank borrowings

- bankers’ acceptances 1,201 (7,997) 10,231 104 3,539

- term loan 2,473 (841) - 64 1,696

3,674 (8,838) 10,231 168 5,235

Analysis of acquisition of property, plant and equipment:

Group

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Cash 5,371 508

Provision (Note 17) 14 4

5,385 512

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the 
Financial Statements

for the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2022

1.	 GENERAL INFORMATION

	 The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia and is listed on the Main 
Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. 

	 The registered office is located at Unit 30-01, Level 30, Tower A Vertical Business Suite, Avenue 3 Bangsar South, No. 
8 Jalan Kerinchi, 59200 Kuala Lumpur.

	 The principal place of business is located at Lot No. PT 16690 -– 16692, Jalan Permata 2, Arab-Malaysian Industrial 
Park, 71800 Nilai, Negeri Sembilan Darul Khusus.

	 The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the 
directors dated 4 October 2022.

2.	 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

	 The Company is principally engaged in the business of investment holding and the provision of management 
services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 6 to the Financial Statements. There have 
been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

3.	 HOLDING COMPANY

	 The holding company is Casatex Cosmo Sdn. Bhd., a company incorporated in Malaysia. 

4.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION 

	 The financial statements of the Group are prepared under the historical cost convention and modified to include 
other bases of valuation as disclosed in other sections under significant accounting policies, and in compliance 
with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

(a)	 Changes in accounting policies

	 On 1 July 2021, the Group has adopted the following new and amendments to MFRS and IC interpretation 
which are mandatory for annual financial year beginning on or after 1 July 2021:-

Description

Effective for 
annual periods
 beginning on 

or after

Amendments to MFRS 9, MFRS 139, MFRS 7, MFRS 4 and MFRS 16 ‘Interest Rate 
Benchmark Reform’ - Phase 2

1 January 2021

Amendment to MFRS 16 ‘Leases’ - COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions Beyond 30 June 
2021

1 April 2021

	 Adoption of the above amendments to MFRS did not have any material effect on the financial position and 
policy of the Group.
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4.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)

(b) 	 Standards, amendments to MFRS and IC Interpretations Issued But Not Yet Effective

	 At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following new and amendments to MFRS and 
IC interpretation have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (MASB) but are not yet 
effective and have not been adopted by the Group:-

Description

Effective for 
annual periods
 beginning on 

or after

Amendments to MFRS 3 ‘Reference to the Conceptual Framework’ 1 January 2022

Amendments to MFRS 116 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended 
Use’

1 January 2022

Amendments to MFRS 137 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - 
Onerous Contracts: Costs of Fulfilling a Contract’

1 January 2022

Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2018 - 2020

-	 Amendments to MFRS 1 ‘First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting 
Standards - Subsidiary as A First-time Adopter’

1 January 2022

-	 Amendments to MFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments - Fees in the 10% test for 
derecognition of financial liabilities’

1 January 2022

-	 Amendments to MFRS 141 ‘Agriculture - Taxation in Fair Value Measurements’ 1 January 2022

Amendments to MFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’ 1 January 2023

Amendments to MFRS 101 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’

-	 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2023

-	 Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023

Amendments to MFRS 108 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Errors - Definition of Accounting Estimates’

1 January 2023

Amendments to MFRS 112 ‘Income tax - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities 
arising from a Single Transaction’

1 January 2023

Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128 ‘Sale or Contribution of Assets between an 
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture’

Deferred

	 The Group will adopt the above pronouncements when they become effective in the respective financial 
periods. The adoption of these amendments to MFRSs and IC Interpretation do not have any significant 
financial impact to the Group.
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5.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)	 Critical Accounting Estimates And Judgements

	 Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the directors and management and are based 
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and judgements that affect the application of the Group’s 
accounting policies and disclosures, and have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses are discussed below:-

(i)	 Provision for expected credit losses of trade and other receivables and contract assets

	 The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade and other receivables and contract assets. 
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have 
similar loss patterns.

	 The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group will 
calibrate the matrix to adjust historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. At every 
reporting date, historical default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are 
analysed.

	 The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions 
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of 
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic 
conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The information 
about the ECLs on the Group’s trade and other receivables is disclosed in Note 33(a)(ii).

(ii)	 Write-down of Inventories

	 Reviews are made periodically by management on damaged, obsolete and slow-moving inventories. 
These reviews require judgement and estimates. Possible changes in these estimates could result in 
revisions to the valuation of inventories.

(iii)	 Lease liabilities

	 The measurement of the “right-of-use” asset and lease liability for leases where the Group is a lessee 
requires the use of significant judgements and assumptions, such as lease term and incremental 
borrowing rate. 

	 In determining the lease term, the Group considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic 
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not to exercise a termination option. Extension options (or 
periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to 
be extended (or not terminated). 

	 The lease term is reassessed if an option is exercised (or not exercised) or the Group become obligated 
to exercise (not to exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant event 
or a significant change in circumstances occurred, which affect this assessment, and that is within the 
control of the lessee.

	 In determining the incremental borrowing rate, the Group first determine the closest borrowing rate 
before using significant judgement to determine the adjustments required to reflect the term, security, 
value of economic environmental of the respective leases.
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5.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(b)	 Financial Instruments

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statements of financial position when the Group 
has become a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

	 Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual 
arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument classified as a liability, are 
reported as an expense or income. Distributions to holders of financial instruments classified as equity are 
charged directly to equity.

	 Financial instruments are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends to settle 
either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

	 A financial instrument is recognised initially at its fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition or issue of the financial instrument (other than a financial instrument at fair value through profit 
or loss) are added to/deducted from the fair value on initial recognition, as appropriate. Transaction costs on 
the financial instrument at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

	 Financial instruments recognised in the statements of financial position are disclosed in the individual policy 
statement associated with each item.

(i)	 Financial Assets 

	 Initial measurement and recognition

	 On initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial 
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition 
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are 
expensed in profit or loss.

	 Trade receivables are measured at the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled 
in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to be customer, excluding amounts collected on 
behalf of third party, in the trade receivables do not contain a significant financing component at initial 
recognition.

	 Subsequent measurement

(a)	 Investments in debt instruments

	 Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for 
managing the asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset. The three measurement 
categories for classification of debt instruments are:

•	 Amortised cost

	 Financial assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows 
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial 
assets are measures at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. 
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the assets are derecognised or impaired, 
and through amortisation process. 
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5.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(b)	 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(i)	 Financial Assets (Cont’d)

	 Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

(a)	 Investments in debt instruments (Cont’d)

•	 Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

	 Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial 
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are 
measured at FVOCI. Financial assets measured FVOCI are subsequently measures at fair 
value. Any gains or losses from changes in fair value of the financial assets are recognised 
in other comprehensive income, except for impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and 
losses and interest calculated using the effective interest method are recognised in profit 
loss. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income in 
reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment when the financial 
asset is derecognised.

	 The Group and the Company do not hold any financials at FVOCI.

•	 Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

	 Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value 
through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt instruments that is subsequently measured at 
fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit 
or loss in the period in which it arises.

(b)	 Investments in equity instruments

	 On initial recognition of an investment in equity instrument that is not held for trading, the Group 
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. Dividends from such 
investments are to be recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payments is 
established. For investments in equity instruments which the Group has not elected to present 
subsequent changes in fair value in OCI, changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss.

	 Derecognition

	 A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from the assets has 
expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount 
and the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in 
other comprehensive income for debt instrument is recognised in profit or loss.
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5.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(b)	 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(ii)	 Financial Liabilities

	 Initial measurement and recognition

	 Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the financial instrument. The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at 
initial recognition.

	 All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus in the case financial liabilities not at fair 
value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

	 Subsequent measurement

	 After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through profit or loss are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are 
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation process.

	 Derecognition

	 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. On derecognition, the difference between the carrying amounts and the consideration paid is 
recognised in profit or loss.

(iii)	 Equity Instruments

	 Equity instruments classified as equity are measured at cost and are not remeasured subsequently.

•	 Ordinary Shares

	 Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares are shown in equity as a 
deduction, net of tax, from proceeds.

	 Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as liabilities when approved for appropriation.

•	 Treasury Shares

	 When the Company’s own shares recognised as equity are bought back, the amount of the 
consideration paid, including all costs directly attributable, are recognised as a deduction from 
equity. Own shares purchased that are not subsequently cancelled are classified as treasury shares 
and are presented as a deduction from total equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on 
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of treasury shares.

	 Where treasury shares are sold, the difference between the sales consideration and the carrying 
amount of the treasury shares are shown as a movement in equity when the consideration received 
is more than the carrying amount. Where the consideration received is different from the carrying 
amount, the difference is offset against reserves.
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5.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(b)	 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

(iv)	 Derecognition

	 A financial asset or part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the contractual rights to the cash 
flows from the financial asset expire or the financial asset is transferred to another party without retaining 
control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. On derecognition of a financial asset, the 
difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received (including any new 
asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised 
in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

	 A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation specified in the 
contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference 
between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and 
the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in 
profit or loss.

(c)	 Functional and Foreign Currencies

(i)	 Functional and Presentation Currency

	 The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are presented in the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the entity operates, which is the functional currency. 

	 The consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is the Company’s 
functional and presentation currency and has been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise 
stated.

(ii)	 Transactions and Balances

	 Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into the respective functional currencies on initial 
recognition, using the exchange rates approximating those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary 
assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period are translated at the rates ruling as of that date. 
Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rates that existed when the values 
were determined. All exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss. 

(d)	 Basis of Consolidation

	 The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries 
made up to the end of the reporting period.

	 Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities, if any) controlled by the Group. The Group controls an 
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and 
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Potential voting rights are considered 
when assessing control only when such rights are substantive. The Group also considers it has de facto power 
over an investee when, despite not having the majority of voting rights, it has the current ability to direct the 
activities of the investee that significantly affect investee’s returns.

	 Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group up to the effective 
date on which control ceases, as appropriate. Intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses are 
eliminated on consolidation.
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5.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(d)	 Basis of Consolidation (Cont’d)

	 Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. 
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of the subsidiaries to ensure consistency 
of the accounting policies within those of the Group.

	 The acquisitions resulted in a business combination involving common control entities is outside the scope 
of MFRS 3. The merger accounting is used by the Group to account for such common control business 
combinations.

(i)	 Merger accounting for common control business combinations

	 A business combination involving entities under common control is a business combination in which all 
the combining entities or subsidiaries are ultimately controlled by the same party and parties both before 
and after the business combination, and that control is not transitory.

	 Subsidiaries acquired which have met the criteria for pooling of interest are accounted for using merger 
accounting principles. Under the merger method of accounting, the results of the subsidiaries are 
presented as if the merger had been effected throughout the current financial year. 

	 The assets and liabilities combined are accounted for based on the carrying amounts from the perspective 
of the common control shareholder at the date of transfer. No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill 
and excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities 
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of the common control business combination to the extent 
of the continuation of the controlling party and parties’ interests.

	 When the merger method is used, the cost of investment in the Company’s books is recorded at the 
nominal value of shares issued. The difference between the carrying value of the investment and the 
nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries is treated as a merger deficit or merger reserve as 
applicable. The results of the subsidiaries being merged are included for the full financial year.

(ii)	 Acquisition Method of Accounting for Non-Common Control Business Combinations

	 Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. Under the acquisition method, 
the consideration transferred for acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred, 
liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group at the acquisition date. The consideration 
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration 
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs, other than the costs to issue debt or equity securities, are 
recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

	 In a business combination achieved in stages, previously held equity interests in the acquiree are 
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain or loss is recognised in profit 
or loss. 

	 Non-controlling interests in the acquiree may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the 
date of acquisition. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. 
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5.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(d)	 Basis of Consolidation (Cont’d)

(iii)	 Non-Controlling Interests

	 Non-controlling interests are presented within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, 
separately from the equity attributable to owners of the Company. Profit or loss and each component of 
other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling 
interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in the 
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. 

(iv)	 Changes In Ownership Interests In Subsidiaries Without Change of Control

	 All changes in the parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are 
accounted for as equity transactions. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling 
interest is adjusted and the fair value of consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity of 
the Group.

(v)	 Loss of Control

	 Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group recognises any gain or loss on disposal in profit or loss 
which is calculated as the difference between:-

(i)	 the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained 
interest in the former subsidiary; and

(ii)	 the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the former 
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.

	 Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the former subsidiary 
are accounted for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were 
disposed of (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained profits). The fair value of 
any investments retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair 
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under MFRS 9 or, when applicable, the cost on 
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

(e)	 Investments in Subsidiaries

	 Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost in the statement of financial position of the Company, and are 
reviewed for impairment at the end of the reporting period if events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
the carrying values may not be recoverable. The cost of the investments includes transaction costs.

	 On the disposal of the investments in subsidiaries, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the investments is recognised in profit or loss.

(f)	 Property, Plant and Equipment

	 Property, plant and equipment, other than freehold land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, if any. Freehold land is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any and is not depreciated.
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5.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(f)	 Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)

	 Depreciation is charged to profit or loss (unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset) on 
the straight-line method to write off the depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated useful lives. 
Depreciation of an asset does not cease when the asset becomes idle or is retired from active use unless the 
asset is fully depreciated. The principal annual rates of depreciation are as follows:-

Depreciation Rate

Buildings 3%

Plant and machinery 10%

Motor vehicles 20%

Office equipment and counter display 10% - 25%

Electrical appliances 20%

Furniture and fittings 10%

Renovation 20%

Factory and warehouse equipment 10% -15%

	 The depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end 
of the reporting period to ensure that the amounts, method and periods of depreciation are consistent with 
previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the 
items of the property, plant and equipment.

	 When significant parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for 
as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

	 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when the cost is incurred and it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the asset 
will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of parts that are 
replaced is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised 
in profit or loss as incurred. 

	 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset, being the different between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount, is recognised in profit or loss. The revaluation reserve 
included in equity is transferred directly to retained profits on retirement or disposal of the asset.

(g)	 Impairment 

(i)	 Impairment of Financial Assets

	 The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held 
at fair value through profit or loss and financial guarantee contracts. ECLs are based on the difference 
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the 
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The 
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements 
that are integral to the contractual terms.
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5.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(g)	 Impairment (Cont’d)

(i)	 Impairment of Financial Assets (Cont’d)

	 ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase 
in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events 
that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12 months ECL). For those credit exposures for which there 
has been a significant losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of timing of 
the default (a lifetime ECL).

	 For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculation ECLs. 
Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based 
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its 
historical credit loss experience adjusted for forward – looking factors specific to the receivables and the 
economic environment.

	 The Group consider a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 150 days past due. 
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or 
external information indicates that the Group are unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts 
in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written 
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

(ii)	 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

	 The carrying values of assets, other than those to which MFRS 136 - Impairment of Assets does not apply, 
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period for impairment when an annual impairment assessment 
is compulsory or there is an indication that the assets might be impaired. Impairment is measured by 
comparing the carrying values of the assets with their recoverable amounts. When the carrying amount 
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is written down to its recoverable amount and an 
impairment loss shall be recognised.  The recoverable amount of the assets is the higher of the assets’ 
fair value less costs to sell and their value in use, which is measured by reference to discounted future 
cash flow using a pre-tax discount rate. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an 
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of cash-generating unit to which the asset 
belongs.

	 An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the asset is carried at its revalued 
amount. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to the extent of a 
previously recognised revaluation surplus for the same asset. Impairment losses recognised in respect 
of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the 
cash-generating units and the to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the cash-generating 
unit on a pro rate basis.

	 In respect of assets other than goodwill, and when there is a change in the estimates used to determine 
the recoverable amount, a subsequent increase in the recoverable amount of an asset is treated as a 
reversal of the previous impairment loss and is recognised to the extent of the carrying amount of the 
asset that would have been determined (net of amortisation and depreciation) had no impairment loss 
been recognised. The reversal is recognised in profit or loss immediately, unless the asset is carried at its 
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase. 
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5.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(h)	 Inventories

	 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted average 
cost, and comprises the purchase price and incidentals incurred in bringing the inventories to their present 
location and condition. Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress include the cost of materials, labour and 
an appropriate proportion of production overheads.

	 Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less the estimated costs of completion and the 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(i)	 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

	 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past 
events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at the end 
of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the time value 
of money is material, the provision is the present value of the estimated expenditure required to settle the 
obligation. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as interest expense in profit or loss.

	 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be 
confirmed by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. 
It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that 
an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

	 A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When a change 
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

	 A contingent asset is a probable asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the control of the 
Group.

	 A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When its inflows 
of economic benefit is virtually certain, then the related assets is recognised in the statement of financial 
position.

(j)	 Income Taxes
	
	 Income taxes for the reporting period comprise current tax and deferred tax. 

	 Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of the taxable profit for the reporting 
period and is measured using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the 
reporting period.

	
	 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences other than those that arise from 

goodwill or excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities 
and contingent liabilities over the business combination costs or from the initial recognition of an asset or 
liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither 
accounting profit nor taxable profit.
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5.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(j)	 Income Taxes (Cont’d)

	 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax 
credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilitised. The carrying amounts of 
deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax 
assets to be utilised.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when 
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same taxation entity and the same 
authority.

	  
	 Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred 

tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transactions either in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity and deferred tax arising from a business combination is adjusted against goodwill or excess 
of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent 
liabilities over the business combination costs. 

(k)	 Borrowing Costs

	 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of property, plant and equipment are 
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are ready for their intended use or 
sale. The capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended during extended periods in which active development 
is interrupted.

	 All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(l)	 Operating Segments

	 An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may 
earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of 
the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the chief 
operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its 
performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

(m)	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, deposits held at call with financial institutions 
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are 
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value with original maturity periods of three months or less. For 
the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts.
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5.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(n)	 Employee Benefits

(i)	 Short-term Benefits

	 Wages, salaries, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits are measured on 
an undiscounted basis and are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the associated services 
are rendered by employees of the Group.

(ii)	 Defined Contribution Plans 

	 The Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised in profit or loss in the period to 
which they relate. Once the contributions have been paid, the Group has no further liability in respect of 
the defined contribution plans. 

(o)	 Related Parties

	 A party is related to an entity (referred to as the “reporting entity”) if:-

(a) 	 A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if that person:-

(i)	 has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
(ii)	 has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
(iii)	 is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting 

entity.

	 Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, 
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(b)	 An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:-

(i)	 The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each parent, 
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii)	 One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a 
member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii)	 Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv)	 One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
(v)	 The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting 

entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the 
sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity.

(vi)	 The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a) above.
(vii) 	 A person identified in (a)(i) above has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key 

management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
(viii)	 The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel 

services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity.

	 Related parties also include key management personnel defined as those persons having authority and 
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the reporting entity either directly or 
indirectly, including its director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity.
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5.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(p)	 Fair Value Measurements

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable 
or estimated using a valuation technique. The measurement assumes that the transaction takes place either 
in the principal market or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market. For non-
financial asset, the fair value measurement takes into account a market’s participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant 
that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

	 For financial reporting purposes, the fair value measurements are analysed into level 1 to level 3 as follows:-

Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liability that the entity 
can access at the measurement date;

Level 2: Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

	 The transfer of fair value between levels is determined as of the date of the event or change in circumstances 
that caused the transfer.

(q)	 Revenue Recognition

	 Revenue from contracts with customers

	 Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised by reference to each distinct performance obligation 
promised in the contract with customer when or as the Group transfers control of the goods or services 
promised in a contract and the customer obtains control of the goods or services. Revenue from contracts 
with customers is measured at its transaction price, being the amount of consideration to which the Group 
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, net of goods 
and services tax, returns, rebates and discounts. The transaction price is allocated to each distinct good or 
service promised in the contract. Depending on the terms of the contract, revenue is recognised when the 
performance obligation is satisfied, which may be at a point in time or over time.

(i)	 Sale of Goods - Trading

	 Revenue is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer.

(ii)	 Management fees

	 Management fees are recognised over time when the services are rendered to customer.

	 Revenue from other sources

	 Specific revenue recognition criteria for other revenue and income earned by the Group are as follows:

(i)	 Interest Income

	 Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.
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5.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(q)	 Revenue Recognition (Cont’d)

	 Revenue from other sources (Cont’d)

(ii)	 Dividend Income

	 Dividend income from investment is recognised when the right to receive dividend payment is established.

(iii)	 Rental Income

	 Rental income is recognised on an accrual basis.

(r)	 Leases

	 The Group assess at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

(a)	 As a lessee

	 The Group apply a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term 
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognise lease liabilities to make lease payments and 
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(i)	 Right-of-use assets

	 The Group recognise right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the 
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The 
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs 
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives 
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease 
term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

(ii)	 Lease liabilities

	 At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognise lease liabilities measured at the 
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed 
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable 
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual 
value guarantees.

	 Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses 
(unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that 
triggers the payment occurs.
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5.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(r)	 Leases (Cont’d)

(a)	 As a lessee (Cont’d)

(ii)	 Lease liabilities (Cont’d)

	 In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group use incremental borrowing rate at the 
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. 
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of 
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities 
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments 
(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such 
lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(iii)	 Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

	 The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery 
and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement 
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low value assets recognition 
exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on 
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term.

(b)	 As a lessor

	 The Group classified leases as either operating leases or finance leases. Leases where the Group retain 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased assets are classified as operating leases. 
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the 
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

(s)	 Contract assets/liabilities

	 Contract asset is the right to consideration for goods or services transferred to the customers. If the Company 
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before 
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

	 Contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to customer for which the Company has received 
the consideration or has billed the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers 
goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment 
is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under 
the contract.

6.	 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

THE COMPANY

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Unquoted shares, at cost 57,565 57,565
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6.	 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

	 Details of the subsidiaries, which are all incorporated in Malaysia, are as follows:-

NAME OF THE COMPANIES

EFFECTIVE
EQUITY INTEREST

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES2022 2021

Monsieur (M) Sdn. Bhd. 100% 100% Retailing of home linen and homeware.

Syarikat Yoong Onn Sdn. Bhd. 100% 100% Distribution, trading and retailing of home linen 
and homeware.

Elegant Total Home Sdn. Bhd. 100% 100% Distribution, trading and retailing of home linen 
and homeware.

Sleep Focus Sdn. Bhd. 100% 100% Design and manufacture of home linen and 
bedding accessories and trading of home linen.

7.	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

THE GROUP

AT
1.7.2021
RM’000

ADDITIONS
RM’000

RECLASS/
WRITTEN 

OFF
RM’000

DISPOSAL
RM’000

DEPRECIATION
CHARGE

RM’000

AT
30.6.2022

RM’000

Net Book Value 

Freehold land 14,557 - - - - 14,557

Buildings 34,166 987 - - (1,284) 33,869

Plant and machinery 185 773 117 - (97) 978

Factory and warehouse 
equipment 852 278 (131) - (409) 590

Motor vehicles  626 - - - (276)  350

Office equipment and counter 
display 1,593 1,411 47 (32) (838) 2,181

Electrical appliances 257 498 (21) - (185) 549

Renovation 641 1,049 (86) - (394) 1,210

Furniture and fittings 609 389 (32) - (204) 762

Total 53,486 5,385 (106) (32) (3,687) 55,046
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7.	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

THE GROUP

AT
1.7.2020
RM’000

ADDITIONS
RM’000

WRITTEN 
OFF

RM’000
DISPOSAL

RM’000

DEPRECIATION
CHARGE

RM’000

AT
30.6.2021

RM’000

Net Book Value 

Freehold land 14,557 - - - - 14,557

Buildings 35,447 - - - (1,281) 34,166

Plant and machinery 291 19 - - (125) 185

Factory and warehouse 
equipment 1,208 20 - - (376) 852

Motor vehicles  957 - - (8) (323)  626

Office equipment and counter 
display 2,069 372 (9) - (839) 1,593

Electrical appliances 443 6 (8) - (184) 257

Renovation 979 73 (5) - (406) 641

Furniture and fittings 826 22 - - (239) 609

Total 56,777 512 (22) (8) (3,773) 53,486

THE GROUP
COST

RM’000

ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION

RM’000

NET BOOK
VALUE

RM’000

At 30.6.2022

Freehold land 14,557 - 14,557

Buildings 43,688 (9,819) 33,869

Plant and machinery 6,945 (5,967) 978

Factory and warehouse equipment 5,419 (4,829) 590

Motor vehicles 4,676 (4,326)  350

Office equipment and counter display 9,809 (7,628) 2,181

Electrical appliances 2,453 (1,904) 549

Renovation 6,074 (4,864) 1,210

Furniture and fittings 3,905 (3,143) 762

97,526 (42,480) 55,046
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7.	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

THE GROUP
COST

RM’000

ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION

RM’000

NET BOOK
VALUE

RM’000

At 30.6.2021

Freehold land 14,557 - 14,557

Buildings 42,701 (8,535) 34,166

Plant and machinery 6,264 (6,079) 185

Factory and warehouse equipment 5,029 (4,177) 852

Motor vehicles 4,676 (4,050) 626

Office equipment and counter display 8,658 (7,065) 1,593

Electrical appliances 2,071 (1,814) 257

Renovation 5,286 (4,645) 641

Furniture and fittings 3,711 (3,102) 609

92,953 (39,467) 53,486

THE COMPANY

AT
1.7.2021
RM’000

DEPRECIATION
CHARGE

RM’000

AT
30.6.2022

RM’000

Net Book Value

Office equipment - - -

AT
1.7.2020
RM’000

DEPRECIATION
CHARGE

RM’000

AT
30.6.2021

RM’000

Net Book Value

Office equipment - - -

THE COMPANY

AT
COST

RM’000

ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION

RM’000

NET BOOK
VALUE

RM’000

At 30.6.2022

Office equipment 10 (10) -

AT
COST

RM’000

ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION

RM’000

NET BOOK
VALUE

RM’000

At 30.6.2021

Office equipment 10 (10) -
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7.	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

	 As at 30 June 2022, two units of freehold buildings (2021 - two units of freehold buildings) with net book value of 
RM11,084,573 (2021 - RM11,453,035) had been pledged to licensed bank as security for banking facilities granted to 
the Group as disclosed in Note 18 to the Financial Statements.

8.	 LEASES

a)	 As a lessee

	 Right-of-use assets

Store
RM’000

Hostel
RM’000

Boutique
RM’000

Total
RM’000

THE GROUP

Cost

At 1 July 2021 93 149 15,024 15,266

Addition - 89 5,123 5,212

Adjustment - (15) (17) (32)

Expiry (54) - (7,637) (7,691)

At 30 June 2022 39 223 12,493 12,755

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 July 2021 58 24 8,925 9,007

Addition 33 104 4,903 5,040

Adjustment - - (5) (5)

Expiry (54) - (7,637) (7,691)

At 30 June 2022 37 128 6,186 6,351

Net carrying amount

At 30 June 2022 2 95 6,307 6,404
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8.	 LEASES (CONT’D)

a)	 As a lessee (Cont’d)

	 Right-of-use assets (Cont’d)

Store
RM’000

Hostel
RM’000

Boutique
RM’000

Total
RM’000

THE GROUP

Cost

At 1 July 2020 72 184 13,431 13,687

Addition 36 114 5,173 5,323

Expiry (15) (149) (3,580) (3,744)

At 30 June 2021 93 149 15,024 15,266

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 July 2020 31 108 5,971 6,110

Addition 42 49 6,555 6,646

Expiry (15) (133) (3,601) (3,749)

At 30 June 2021 58 24 8,925 9,007

Net carrying amount

At 30 June 2021 35 125 6,099 6,259

	 During the financial year 30 June 2022, the lease contract cost amounting to RM7,691,524 (2021 - RM3,743,733) 
has expired and consequently written-off.

b)	 Lease liabilities

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

THE GROUP

Minimum lease payments 

Repayable not later than 1 year 3,792 4,409

Repayable later than 1 year and not later than 2 years 2,732 1,987

6,524 6,396
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8.	 LEASES (CONT’D)

b)	 Lease liabilities (Cont’d)

	 The movement of lease liabilities during the financial year is as follows:-

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

THE GROUP

At 1 July 6,396 7,676

Adjustment during the year (27) 9

Lease interest expense (Note 22) 281 462

COVID-19 related rent concession received (730) (567)

Addition 5,212 5,323

Payment of

	 - Principal (4,327) (6,045)

	 - Interest (281) (462)

At 30 June 6,524 6,396

	 The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:-

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 22) 5,040 6,646

Lease Interest expense (Note 22) 281 462

5,321 7,108

	 The Group had total cash outflow for leases of RM4,608,200 (2021 - RM6,506,800) during the financial year.
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9.	 INVENTORIES

THE GROUP

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

At cost:-
Raw materials 10,359 8,120
Work in progress 1,362 1,427
Finished goods 52,716 57,845
Stock-in-transit 369 842

64,806 68,234

At net realisable value:-

Raw materials 1,157 1,822
Finished goods 2,829 4,638

3,986 6,460

Total inventories 68,792 74,694

Recognised in profit or loss:-
Inventories recognised as cost of sales 93,206 83,708
Amount (write-back)/write-down of inventories (3,070) 2,364

10.	 TRADE RECEIVABLES

THE GROUP

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Trade receivables 36,976 23,353
Allowance for impairment losses (2,170) (3,268)

34,806 20,085

Allowance for impairment losses:
At 1 July (3,268) (3,148)
Addition during the financial year (21) (614)
Write-off during the financial year 66 7
Write-back during the financial year 1,053 487

At 30 June (2,170) (3,268)

	 The Group’s normal credit terms of trade receivables range from 30 to 120 days (2021 - 30 to 180 days). Other credit 
terms are assessed and approved on a case-by-case basis.
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11.	 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

	 Included in other receivables, deposits and prepayments of the Group is an amount of RM3,676,269 (2021 – 
RM2,997,068), being deposits paid to suppliers for future supply of materials and finished goods.

	 These deposits shall be recovered by way of set-off against the supply of materials and finished goods.

12.	 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENT

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss:

Fixed income trust fund, at fair value 73,735 88,485 40,359 44,386

At market value 73,735 88,485 40,359 44,386

	 The investment in fixed income trust fund represents investment in highly liquid money market and fixed income 
instruments, which are readily convertible to a known amount of cash. The fund aims to provide a higher level of 
liquidity while providing better return from non-taxable income by predominantly investing its assets in money 
market and other fixed income instruments.

	 The effective interest rates ranged approximately from 1.81% to 2.40% (2021 – 1.00% to 2.67%) per annum. The short-
term investment is designated as fair value through profit or loss and is measured at fair value.

13.	 DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

	 The effective interest rates of the deposits with financial institutions at the end of the reporting period ranged from 
1.90% to 2.40% (2021 – 1.90% to 2.00%) per annum. The deposits have a maturity period of 30 to 94 days (2021 – 30 
to 90 days).

14.	 SHARE CAPITAL

THE GROUP/THE COMPANY

2022 2021

Number of 
shares

’000 RM’000

Number of
shares

’000 RM’000

Issued and Fully Paid-Up:

At 1 July/30 June 160,000 80,000 160,000 80,000



FINANCIALS84

Yoong Onn Corporation Berhad

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2022

15.	 TREASURY SHARES
	
	 Of the total 160,000,000 issued and fully paid-up ordinary shares as at 30 June 2022, 1,347,300 (2021 - 1,347,300) 

ordinary shares are held as treasury shares by the Company. The treasury shares are held at a carrying amount of 
RM822,534 (2021 - RM822,534). None of the treasury shares were resold or cancelled during the financial year.

16.	 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/(ASSETS)

THE GROUP

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

At beginning of the year (2,367) (1,585)
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 23) 1,341 (782)

At end of the year (1,026) (2,367)

	 Presented after appropriate offsetting as follows:

THE GROUP

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Deferred tax assets (2,643) (3,570)
Deferred tax liabilities 1,617 1,203

(1,026) (2,367)

	 The deferred tax liabilities are attributable to the following:-

THE GROUP

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Surpluses on valuation of properties 1,030 1,076
Accelerated capital allowances on qualifying costs of property, plant and equipment 1,001 685
Provisions and other temporary differences (414) (558)

1,617 1,203

	 The deferred tax assets are attributable to the following:-

THE GROUP

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Accelerated capital allowances on qualifying costs of property, plant and equipment 73 131
Provisions and other temporary differences (2,716) (3,701)

(2,643) (3,570)
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17.	 PROVISION
	
	 Provision for restoration/relocation costs

	 Provision for restoration/relocation costs is included in the carrying amounts of renovation. This provision recognised 
in respect of the obligation of the Group to restore leased outlets to its original state upon the expiry of tenancy 
agreements.

THE GROUP

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

At 1 July 385 380

Recognised in property, plant and equipment 14 4

Recognised in profit or loss (Note 22) 10 12

Utilised during the financial year (23) (11)

At 30 June 386 385

18.	 BANK BORROWINGS

THE GROUP

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Bankers’ acceptances (unsecured) 3,846 3,539

Term loan (secured) 896 1,696

4,742 5,235

	 The bank borrowings at the end of the reporting period bore interest rates ranging from 2.88% to 3.85% (2021 – 
2.76% to 3.10%) per annum.

	 The bank borrowings obtained from licensed banks are secured by:

i)	 charges over certain properties of a subsidiary (Note 7); and
ii)	 a corporate guarantee of the Company for the subsidiaries 
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18.	 BANK BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

THE GROUP

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Non-current

Term loan (secured) 73 895

Current

Bankers’ acceptances (unsecured) 3,846 3,539

Term loan (secured) 823 801

4,669 4,340

4,742 5,235

19.	 TRADE PAYABLES

	 The normal trade credit terms granted to the Group range from 30 to 120 days (2021 - 30 to 120 days).

20. 	 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 

	 The balances represent deposit received from customer. For sales of goods, revenue is recognised when the control 
of the goods is transferred to the customer, being at the point the goods are delivered to the customer. When the 
customer initially purchases the goods, the transaction price received at that point by the Group is recognised as 
contract liability until the goods have been delivered to the customer.

21. 	 REVENUE

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Revenue from contracts with customer, at a 
point in time

Sale of home bedding and linens 227,969 205,659 - -

Revenue from contracts with customer, over 
time

Management fee - - 1,043 662

Other revenue

Dividend income - - 15,000 11,100

227,969 205,659 16,043 11,762
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22.	 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration:

- audit fee 130 120 29 27

- non-audit fee 20 8 5 5

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,687 3,773 - -

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 5,040 6,646 - -

Impairment losses:

- trade receivables 21 614  -  -

- other receivables 1 -  -  -

Interest expense:

- bankers’ acceptances 140 104 - -

- term loan 39 64 - -

- unwinding of discount on provision for restoration 10 12 - -

- lease 281 462 - -

Write-down of inventories - 2,364 - -

Plant and equipment written off 106 22 - -

Rental of premises 4,762 3,509 - -

Staff costs:

- short-term benefits 32,004 31,495 336 337

- defined contribution plans 2,979 2,921 39 40

- estimated non-monetary benefits-in-kind 38 40 - -

Loss on foreign exchange-realised - 207 - -

Loss on foreign exchange-unrealised - 119 - -

Profit before taxation is arrived at after crediting:

Interest income (1,679) (1,579) (891) (767)

Gain on foreign exchange-realised (259) - - -

Gain on foreign exchange-unrealised (249) - - -

Gain on disposal of plant and equipment (3) (26) - -

Write-back of impairment losses on inventories (3,070) - - -

Write-back of allowance for impairment losses:

- trade receivables (1,053) (487) - -

- other receivables - (5) - -
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23.	 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Current tax expense:

- for the financial year 9,647 8,273 141 52

- (over)/under provision in the previous 
financial year (7) (53) - 1

9,640 8,220 141 53

Deferred tax expense (Note 16):

- relating to originating and reversal of 
temporary differences 1,341 (782) - -

1,341 (782) - -

10,981 7,438 141 53

	 During the current financial year, the statutory tax rate was 24%.

	 A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to the profit before taxation at the statutory tax rate to income tax 
expense at the effective tax rate of the Group and of the Company are as follows:-

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Profit before taxation 44,853 30,555 15,990 11,699

Tax at the statutory tax rate of 24% (2021 – 24%) 10,765 7,333 3,838 2,808

Tax effects of:-

Non-taxable gain (314) (331) (3,785) (2,845)

Non-deductible expenses 537 489 88 89

(Over)/Under provision in the previous financial 
year:

- current tax (7) (53) - 1

Tax for the financial year 10,981 7,438 141 53
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24.	 EARNINGS PER SHARE

	 The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s profit after taxation attributable to owners of 
the Company of RM33,872,106 (2021 – RM23,117,331) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 
excluding treasury shares during the financial year of 158,652,700 (2021 – 158,652,700).

	 The diluted earnings per share is not presented as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding at 
the end of the reporting period.

25.	 DIVIDENDS

THE GROUP/THE COMPANY

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Recognised as distribution to owners:-

- Final single tier dividend of 1.5 sen per ordinary share for the financial year 
ended 30 June 2020 - 2,380

- Interim single tier dividend of 2.5 sen per ordinary share for the financial year 
ended 30 June 2021 - 3,966

- Final single tier dividend of 1.5 sen per ordinary share for the financial year 
ended 30 June 2021 2,380 -

- Interim single tier dividend of 3.0 sen per ordinary share for the financial year 
ended 30 June 2022 4,759 -

7,139 6,346

Net dividend per share (sen) 4.5 4.0

26.	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

	 For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:-

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Cash and bank balances 17,862 20,387 2,993 499

Deposits with financial institutions (Note 13) 42,020 4,991 11,000 -

Short-term investment (Note 12) 73,735 88,485 40,359 44,386

133,617 113,863 54,352 44,885
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27.	 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Executive:

- non-fee emoluments 1,330 1,212 - -

- defined contribution plan 161 145 - -

- estimated non-monetary benefits-in-kind 30 27 - -

1,521 1,384 - -

Non Executive:

- non-fee emoluments 12 15 12 15

- fee 177 177 177 177

189 192 189 192

	 The aggregate amount of emoluments received and receivable by the directors of the Company during the financial 
year in bands of RM50,000 are as follows:-

Number of
Directors

Directors’
Fee

RM’000

Directors’
Other

Emoluments
RM’000

Total
RM’000

THE GROUP

2022

Non Executive:

- Below RM50,000 3 123 9 132

- Between RM50,001 and RM100,000 1 54 3 57

4 177 12 189

Executive:

- Between RM700,001 and RM750,000 1 - 703 703

- Between RM800,001 and RM850,000 1 - 818 818

2 - 1,521 1,521
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27.	 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT’D)

Number of
Directors

Directors’
Fee

RM’000

Directors’
Other

Emoluments
RM’000

Total
RM’000

THE GROUP

2021

Non Executive:

- Below RM50,000 3 123 11 134

- Between RM50,001 and RM100,000 1 54 4 58

4 177 15 192

Executive:

- Between RM600,001 and RM650,000 1 - 640 640

- Between RM700,001 and RM750,000 1 - 744 744

2 - 1,384 1,384

THE COMPANY

2022

Non Executive

- Below RM50,000 3 123 9 132

- Between RM50,001 and RM100,000 1 54 3 57

4 177 12 189

2021

Non Executive

- Below RM50,000 3 123 11 134

- Between RM50,001 and RM100,000 1 54 4 58

4 177 15 192
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28.	 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

(a)	 Identities of related parties

	 Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control 
or jointly control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating 
decisions, or vice versa, or where the Company and the party are subject to common control.

	 In addition to the information detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group has related party 
relationship with:

	
(i)	 its subsidiaries;

(ii)	 the directors and officers who are the key management personnel; and

(iii)	 entities controlled by the key management personnel/directors/substantial shareholders.

(b)	 In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group carried out the 
following transactions with the related parties during the financial year:-

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Subsidiaries: 

- Management fee received/receivable - - 1,043 662

- Dividend income received/receivable - - 15,000 11,100

	 The Directors are of the opinion that the above transactions have been entered into in the normal course of 
business and have been established on terms and conditions negotiated and agreed by the related parties.

(c)	 Key management personnel

	 Compensation to key management personnel relating to those of Directors are disclosed in Note 27 to the 
Financial Statements.

THE GROUP

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Other key management personnel:-

- Short-term employee benefits 1,828 1,659

- Defined contribution plans 219 199

- Estimated non-monetary benefits-in-kind 38 40

2,085 1,898
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29.	 OPERATING SEGMENTS 

	 The Group has three reportable segments, as disclosed below, which are the Group’s strategic business units. The 
strategic business units offer different products and services, and are managed separately. The following summary 
describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

• Manufacturing - design and manufacturing of home linen and bedding accessories.

• Distribution and trading - distribution and trading of home linen and homeware.

• Retailing - retailing of home linen and homeware.

2022
MANUFACTURING

RM’000

DISTRIBUTION 
& TRADING

RM’000
RETAILING

RM’000
ELIMINATION

RM’000

THE
GROUP
RM’000

Inter-segment revenue 20,365 5,844 1,450 (27,659) -

External revenue 16,405 136,222 75,342 - 227,969

Total revenue 36,770 142,066 76,792 (27,659) 227,969

Segment results 5,073 24,325 15,977 - 45,375

Unallocated loss (52)

Operating profits 45,323

Finance costs (1) (181) (288) - (470)

Profit before taxation 44,853

Income tax expense (10,981)

Profit after taxation 33,872

Other information

Segment assets 54,934 128,541 69,453 - 252,928

Unallocated assets 57,928

310,856

Segment liabilities 2,742 11,942 10,303 - 24,987

Unallocated liabilities 8,640

33,627
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29.	 OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT’D)

2021
MANUFACTURING

RM’000

DISTRIBUTION 
& TRADING

RM’000
RETAILING

RM’000
ELIMINATION

RM’000

THE
GROUP
RM’000

Inter-segment revenue 20,087 6,829 785 (27,701) -

External revenue 18,041 125,201 62,417 - 205,659

Total revenue 38,128 132,030 63,202 (27,701) 205,659

Segment results 2,112 18,877 10,271 - 31,260

Unallocated loss (63)

Operating profits 31,197

Finance costs (1) (146) (495) - (642)

Profit before taxation 30,555

Income tax expense (7,438)

Profit after taxation 23,117

Other information

Segment assets 58,556 113,760 58,749 - 231,065

Unallocated assets 48,989

280,054

Segment liabilities 3,410 10,008 9,421 - 22,839

Unallocated liabilities 6,719

29,558
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29.	 OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT’D)

2022
MANUFACTURING

RM’000

DISTRIBUTION
& TRADING

RM’000
RETAILING

RM’000

THE
GROUP
RM’000

Capital expenditure 841 3,497 1,047 5,385

Depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment 613 1,734 1,340 3,687

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 23 160 4,857 5,040

Write-back impairment loss for 
receivables (1,011) (9) (11) (1,031)

Write-back of inventories (763) (1,079) (1,228) (3,070)

Interest income (156) (389) (243) (788)

Unallocated interest income (891)

(1,679)

Interest expense 1 133 336 470

2021

Capital expenditure 26 234 252 512

Depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment 639 1,333 1,801 3,773

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 1 77 6,568 6,646

Allowance/(Write-back) of impairment 
loss for receivables 614 (462) (30) 122

Write-down of inventories 1,552 537 275 2,364

Interest income (217) (405) (190) (812)

Unallocated interest income (767)

(1,579)

Interest expense 1 130 511 642
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29.	 OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT’D)

	 GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

	 No financial information based on geographical location has been presented for non-current assets as these assets 
are located wholly in Malaysia.

	 Revenue information based on the geographical location of customers respectively are as follows:

REVENUE

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Malaysia 215,083 191,645
Singapore 6,197 7,193
Vietnam 5,231 5,731
Others 1,458 1,090

227,969 205,659

	 Major customers

	 The Group does not have any major customers with revenue approximate to or more than 10% of the Group’s 
revenue. For the current financial year, RM65,619,000 (2021 - RM57,434,000) of the Group’s revenue is made via a 
local departmental store.

30.	 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Unsecured:-
Corporate guarantee given to licensed banks 

for credit facilities granted to its subsidiaries - - 61,070 61,070
Guarantee issued in favour of third parties 524 590 - -

	 The Group and the Company have assessed the financial guarantees and concluded that the financial impact of the 
financial guarantees is negligible.

31.	 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Contracted but not provided for:-
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 907 - - -
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32.	 FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES

	 The principal closing foreign exchange rates used (expressed on the basis of one unit of foreign currency to RM 
equivalent) for the translation of the foreign currency balances at the end of the reporting period are as follows:-

2022
RM

2021
RM

United States Dollar 4.40 4.15
Singapore Dollar 3.16 3.09
Renminbi  Yuan 0.66 0.64

33.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

	 The Group’s activities are exposed to a variety of market risk (including foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), 
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall financial risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of 
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. 

(a)	 Financial Risk Management Policies

	 The Group’s policies in respect of the major areas of treasury activity are as follows:-

(i)	 Market Risk 

	 Foreign Currency Risk 

	 The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions and balances that are denominated in 
currencies other than the respective functional currencies of the entities within the Group. The currencies 
giving rise to this risk are primarily United States Dollar (“USD”), Singapore Dollar (“SGD”) and Renminbi 
Yuan (“RMB“). Foreign currency risk is monitored closely on an ongoing basis to ensure that the net 
exposure is at an acceptable level. The Group also holds cash and cash equivalents denominated in 
foreign currencies for working capital purpose.

	 The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk (a currency which is other than the functional currency of 
the entities within the Group) that based on carrying amounts of the financial instruments at the end of 
the reporting period is summarised below:-

THE GROUP

UNITED
STATES

DOLLAR
RM’000

SINGAPORE
DOLLAR
RM’000

RENMINBI
YUAN

RM’000
TOTAL

RM’000

2022

Financial assets
Trade receivables 1,839 1,899 - 3,738
Cash and bank balances 540 3 - 543

2,379 1,902 - 4,281

Financial liabilities
Trade payables 599 - 795 1,394

Currency exposure
Net financial assets 1,780 1,902 (795) 2,887
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33.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(a)	 Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)

(i)	 Market Risk (Cont’d)

	 Foreign Currency Risk (Cont’d)

THE GROUP

UNITED
STATES

DOLLAR
RM’000

SINGAPORE
DOLLAR
RM’000

RENMINBI
YUAN

RM’000
TOTAL

RM’000

2021

Financial assets

Trade receivables 2,672 2,257 - 4,929

Cash and bank balances 4,576 208 - 4,784

7,248 2,465 - 9,713

Financial liabilities

Trade payables 1,389 - 555 1,944

Currency exposure

Net financial assets 5,859 2,465 (555) 7,769

	 Foreign currency risk sensitivity analysis

	 The following table details the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change in the foreign 
currencies as at the end of the reporting period, with all other variables held constant:- 

THE GROUP

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Effects on profit after taxation and equity

USD/RM:

- strengthened by 5% 68 223

- weakened by 5% (68) (223)

SGD/RM:

- strengthened by 5% 72 94

- weakened by 5% (72) (94)

RMB/RM

- strengthened by 5% (30) (21)

- weakened by 5% 30 21
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33.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(a)	 Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)

(i)	 Market Risk (Cont’d)

	 Interest Rate Risk

	 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk 
arises mainly from its cash and cash equivalents and long-term borrowings with fixed and variable rates. 
The Group’s and the Company’s policy is to obtain the most favourable interest rates available and by 
maintaining a balanced portfolio of mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings. 

	 The interest rate profile of the Group’s and the Company’s significant interest bearing financial instruments, 
based on their carrying amounts as at the reporting date were:

THE GROUP

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets

Fixed deposits 42,020 4,991

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets

Short term investments 73,735 88,485

Financial liabilities

Term loan 896 1,696

Bankers’ acceptances 3,846 3,539

4,742 5,235

THE COMPANY

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets

Fixed deposits 11,000 -

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets

Short term investments 40,359 44,386
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33.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(a)	 Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)

(i)	 Market Risk (Cont’d)

	 Interest Rate Risk (Cont’d)

	 Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

	 At the reporting date, if the interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower, with all other variables 
held constant, the Group’s and the Company’s profit after tax would have immaterial impact.

(ii)	 Credit Risk

	 Credit risk is the risk of loss that arise on outstanding financial instruments should a counterparty default 
on its obligations. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade 
and other receivables. For other financial assets (including investment securities, cash and short-term 
deposits), the Group and the Company minimise credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating 
counterparties.

	 The Group’s and the Company’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses 
incurred due to increased credit risk exposure. The Group and the Company trades only with recognised 
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s and the Company’s policy that all customers who wish 
to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are 
monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s and the Company’s exposure to bad debts 
is not significant.

	 The Group and the Company consider the probability of default upon initial recognition of assets and whether 
there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.

	 The Group and the Company has determined the default event on a financial asset to be when the 
counterparty fails to make contractual payments, within 150 days when they fall due, which are derived 
based on the Group’s and the Company’s historical information.

	 The Group and the Company consider “low risk” to be an investment grade credit rating with at least 
one major rating agency for those investments with credit rating. To assess whether there is a significant 
increase in credit risk, the company compares the risk of a default occurring on the assets as at reporting 
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. The Group and the Company considers 
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.

	 Regardless of the analysis above, a significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is more than 
150 days past due in making contractual payment.

	 The Group and the Company determined that its financial assets are credit-impaired when:

-	 There is significant difficulty of the issuer or the borrower
-	 A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event
-	 It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation
-	 There is a disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulty

	 The Group and the Company categorise a loan or receivable for potential write-off when a debtor fails to 
make contractual payments more than 150 days past due. Financial assets are written off when there is 
no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the 
Group and the Company. Where loans and receivables have been written off, the company continues to 
engage enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these 
are recognised in profit or loss.
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33.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(a)	 Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)

(ii)	 Credit Risk (Cont’d)

	 The following are credit risk management practices and quantitative and qualitative information about 
amounts arising from expected credit losses for each class of financial assets.

(i)	 Trade receivables

	 The Group and the Company provide for lifetime expected credit losses for all trade receivables 
using a provision matrix. The provision rates are determined based on the Group’s and the 
Company’s historical observed default rates analysed in accordance to days past due by grouping of 
customers based on segment. The loss allowance provision is determined as follows, the expected 
credit losses below also incorporate forward looking information.

	 Summarised below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group’s and the 
Company’s trade receivables using provision matrix:

THE GROUP

GROSS
AMOUNT

RM’000

LOSS
ALLOWANCE

PROVISION
RM’000

CARRYING
VALUE

RM’000

2022

Not past due 22,350 (251) 22,099

Past due:

- less than 3 months 14,044 (1,513) 12,531

- 3 to 6 months 559 (390) 169

- over 6 months 23 (16) 7

36,976 (2,170) 34,806

2021

Not past due 13,509 (490) 13,019

Past due:

- less than 3 months 8,172 (1,425) 6,747

- 3 to 6 months 1,312 (1,014) 298

- over 6 months 360 (339) 21

23,353 (3,268) 20,085

	 Information regarding loss allowance movement of trade receivables are disclosed in Note 10.

(ii)	 Other financial assets

	 Cash and cash equivalents and other receivables are subject to immaterial credit loss.
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33.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(a)	 Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)

(ii)	 Credit Risk (Cont’d)

	 Credit risk concentration profile

	 The Group’s major concentration of credit risk relates to the amounts owing by three (3) (2021 - 3) customers 
which constituted approximately 75% (2021 - 62%) of its trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period. 

	 Exposure to credit risk

	 At the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying 
amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the statement of financial position of the Group and 
of the Company after deducting any allowance for impairment losses (where applicable).

	 At the end of the reporting period, trade receivables that are individually impaired were those in significant 
financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. These receivables are not secured by any collateral 
or credit enhancement.

(iii)	 Liquidity Risk

	 Liquidity risk arises mainly from general funding and business activities. The Group practises prudent risk 
management by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances and the availability of funding through 
certain committed credit facilities.

	 The following table sets out the maturity profile of the financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting 
period based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using 
contractual rates or, if floating, based on the rates at the end of the reporting period):-

THE GROUP

CONTRACTUAL
INTEREST

RATE
%

CARRYING
AMOUNT

RM’000

CONTRACTUAL
UNDISCOUNTED

CASH FLOWS
RM’000

WITHIN
1 YEAR
RM’000

1 – 5
YEARS
RM’000

2022

Trade payables - 1,950 1,950 1,950 -
Other payables and 

accruals - 11,440 11,440 11,054 386
Dividend payable - 4,759 4,759 4,759 -
Lease liabilities 4.35 6,524 6,810 3,780 3,030
Bank borrowings 2.88 – 3.85 4,742 4,759 4,686 73

29,415 29,718 26,229 3,489

2021

Trade payables - 2,891 2,891 2,891 -
Other payables and 

accruals - 8,014 8,014 7,629 385
Dividend payable - 3,966 3,966 3,966 -
Lease liabilities 4.35 6,396 6,632 4,238 2,394
Bank borrowings 2.76 – 3.10 5,235 5,289 4,379 910

26,502 26,792 23,103 3,689
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33.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(a)	 Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)

(iii)	 Liquidity Risk (Cont’d)

THE COMPANY

CONTRACTUAL
INTEREST

RATE
%

CARRYING
AMOUNT

RM’000

CONTRACTUAL
UNDISCOUNTED

CASH FLOWS
RM’000

WITHIN
1 YEAR
RM’000

2022

Other payables and accruals - 77 77 77

Dividend payable - 4,759 4,759 4,759

4,836 4,836 4,836

2021

Other payables and accruals - 71 71 71

Dividend payable - 3,966 3,966 3,966

4,037 4,037 4,037

(b)	 Capital Risk Management

	 The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the Group will be able to maintain an optimal 
capital structure so as to support its businesses and maximise shareholders’ value. To achieve this objective, 
the Group may make adjustments to the capital structure in view of changes in economic conditions, such as 
adjusting the amount of dividend payment, returning of capital to shareholders or issuing new shares.

	 The Group manages its capital based on the debt-to-equity ratio. The Group’s strategies were unchanged from 
the previous financial year. The debt-to-equity ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt 
is calculated as borrowings plus trade and other payables less cash and cash equivalents. The Group includes 
within net debts, payables and borrowings from financial institutions less cash and cash equivalents. Capital 
includes equity attributable to the owners of the Group. The debt-to-equity ratio of the Group at the end of the 
reporting period was as follows:

THE GROUP

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Financial liabilities 29,415 26,502

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (133,617) (113,863)

Net Cash (104,202) (87,361)

Total equity 277,229 250,496

Debt-to-equity ratio Not Applicable Not Applicable
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33.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(b)	 Capital Risk Management (Cont’d)

	 Under the requirement of Bursa Malaysia Practice Note No. 17/2005, the Company is required to maintain a 
consolidated shareholders’ equity (total equity attributable to owners of the Company) more than 25% of the 
issued and paid-up share capital and such shareholders’ equity is not less than RM40 million. The Company 
has complied with this requirement.

(c)	 Classification Of Financial Instruments

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

2022
RM’000

2021
RM’000

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit  
or loss

Short-term investment 73,735 88,485 40,359 44,386

Financial assets at amortised cost

Trade receivables 34,806 20,085 - -

Other receivables and deposits 3,479 3,385 92 53

Deposits with financial institutions 42,020 4,991 11,000 -

Cash and bank balances 17,862 20,387 2,993 499

98,167 48,848 14,085 552

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Bank borrowings 4,742 5,235 - -

Trade payables 1,950 2,891 - -

Other payables and accruals 11,440 8,014 77 71

Dividend payable 4,759 3,966 4,759 3,966

Lease liabilities 6,524 6,396 - -

29,415 26,502 4,836 4,037
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33.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

(d)	 Fair Value Information

	 The fair values of the financial assets maturing within the next 12 months approximated their carrying amounts 
due to the relatively short-term maturity of the financial instruments.

Fair Value Of Financial Instruments 
Carried At Fair Value

Total
Fair

Value
RM’000

Carrying
Amount
RM’000

Level 1
RM’000

Level 2
RM’000

Level 3
RM’000

2022

Financial Asset

Short-term investment 73,735 - - 73,735 73,735

2021

Financial Asset

Short-term investment 88,485 - - 88,485 88,485

	 The fair value of the short term investment is estimated based on its quoted market price at the end of the 
reporting period.

	 In regard to financial instruments carried at fair value, there were no transfer between level 1 and level 2 during 
the financial year.
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Analysis of 
Shareholdings
as at 4 October 2022

Issued and fully paid-up capital	 :	 RM80,000,000 divided into 160,000,000 ordinary shares
Class of shares	 :	 Ordinary shares 
Voting rights	 :	 One vote per ordinary share
Treasury shares	 :	 1,347,300 shares
Adjusted share capital	 :	 RM79,326,350 divided into 158,652,700 ordinary shares
(after netting Treasury Shares)

ANALYSIS BY SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS

SIZE OF HOLDNGS
NO. OF 

SHAREHOLDERS
% OF 

SHAREHOLDERS
NO. OF 

SHAREHOLDINGS
% OF 

ISSUED CAPITAL

Less than 100 81 4.66 1,983 *

100 to 1,000 604 34.71 228,610 0.14

1,001 to 10,000 619 35.57 3,202,495 2.02

10,001 to 100,000 352 20.23 10,905,018 6.87

100,001 to less than 5% of issued 
shares 83 4.77 60,314,363 38.02

5% and above of issued shares 1 0.06 84,000,231 52.95

TOTAL 1,740 100.00 158,652,700 100.00

Note:
*	 - 	negligible

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

NAME OF SHAREHOLDER

DIRECT INTEREST INDIRECT INTEREST

NO. OF SHARES % No. OF SHARES % 

Casatex Cosmo Sdn Bhd 84,000,231 52.95 - -

Chew Hon Foong - - 84,000,231 52.95^

Chew Hon Keong - - 84,000,231 52.95^

Chew Hon Yoong - - 84,000,231 52.95^

Chew Zhi Kan - - 84,000,231 52.95^

Note:
^	 - 	Deemed interest by virtue of their shareholdings in Casatex Cosmo Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 8 of Companies  
		  Act 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS 

NO. DIRECTORS
DIRECT 

INTEREST %
INDIRECT 
INTEREST %

1. Datuk Kamaludin Bin Yusoff 104,033 0.07 - -

2. Chew Hon Foong - - 84,000,231 52.95 ^

3. Chew Hon Keong - - 84,000,231 52.95 ^

4. Datuk Hairuddin Bin Mohamed - - - -

5.. Yeoh Chong Keng 154,000 0.10 - -

6. Lee Kim Seng 200,000 0.13 - -

Note:
^ 	- 	Deemed interest by virtue of their direct shareholdings in Casatex Cosmo Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 8 of Companies  
		  Act 2016.

THIRTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS AS PER THE RECORD OF DEPOSITORS

NO. NAME
NO. 

OF SHARES % 

1 CASATEX COSMO SDN BHD  84,000,231  52.95 

2 HLB NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD 
WANG SHOUHU (CUST.SIN91144-4)

 7,866,666  4.96 

3 HLB NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD 
CHEN YONG (CUST.SIN 10955)

 6,997,700  4.41 

4 CHAN FOOK HONG  5,333,333  3.36 

5 DB (MALAYSIA) NOMINEE (TEMPATAN) SENDIRIAN BERHAD 
DEUTSCHE TRUSTEES MALAYSIA BERHAD FOR EASTSPRING 
INVESTMENTSSMALL-CAP FUND

 4,448,500  2.80 

6 CITIGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
KUMPULAN WANG PERSARAAN (DIPERBADANKAN) (ESPG IV SC E)

 2,952,100  1.86 

7 JCBNEXT BERHAD  2,885,700  1.82 

8 UOB KAY HIAN NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD 
EXEMPT AN FOR UOB KAY HIAN PTE LTD (A/C CLIENTS)

 1,716,800  1.08 

9 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR CHONG KHONG SHOONG (E-IMO/JSI)

 1,510,000  0.95 

10 NG YOONG SANG  1,339,333  0.84 

11 LEE CHAI HUA  1,299,100  0.82 

12 ALLIANCEGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR WONG YEE HUI (8095789)

 1,250,000  0.79 
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THIRTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS AS PER THE RECORD OF DEPOSITORS (CONT’D) 

NO. NAME
NO. 

OF SHARES % 

13 FONG AH CHAI  1,000,000  0.63 

14 RHB CAPITAL NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR FONG SILING (CEB)

 1,000,000  0.63 

15 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR CHONG KHONG SHOONG

 910,000  0.57 

16 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR KEJUTAAN HOLDINGS SDN BHD (E-IMO)

 900,000  0.57 

17 WONG YEE HUI  870,000  0.55 

18 YAM CHEE KONG  764,500  0.48 

19 CHAN HOONG MUN  622,700  0.39 

20 TAN AIK CHOON  605,600  0.38 

21 CHEW SWEE TEE @ CHEW SWEE LEE  575,200  0.36 

22 CIMB GROUP NOMINEES (ASING) SDN. BHD. 
EXEMPT AN FOR DBS BANK LTD (SFS)

 559,600  0.35 

23 KOK FOONG PENG  507,233  0.32 

24 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR WONG LAI MOEY (E-IMO)

 480,000  0.30 

25 ALLIANCEGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LEE SWEE KIAT & SONS SDN BHD 
(8109706)

 470,000  0.30 

26 PHILLIP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR WONG YEE HUI

 467,700  0.29 

27 LOO LAI YOKE  465,000  0.29 

28 SUN KIEN KEONG  444,000  0.28 

29 KOH SIN YI  425,000  0.27 

30 AU YONG MUN YUE  400,000  0.25 

Total  133,065,996  83.85 

Analysis of Shareholdings
as at 4 October 2022
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Notice of 
Annual General Meeting 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company will be conducted fully virtual 
via its meeting platform at https://meeting.boardroomlimited.my (Domain Registration No. with MYNIC-D6A357657) on 
Tuesday, 22 November 2022 at 10.00 a.m. for the following purposes:- 

AGENDA

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.	 To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2022 
together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon. 

2.	 To approve the payment of Directors’ fee of RM177,000 for the period commencing  
22 November 2022 until the next Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

	
3.	 To re-elect the following Directors who are retiring in accordance with Clause 104 of the 

Company’s Constitution:	
	

(a)	 Datuk Kamaludin Bin Yusoff
(b)	 Datuk Hairuddin Bin Mohamed	

4.	 To re-appoint HLB Ler Lum Chew PLT as Auditors of the Company and to authorise the 
Directors to fix their remuneration.

 	
	 As Special Business:
	
	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Ordinary Resolutions:-
	
5.	 To approve the payment of single tier final dividend 3.0 sen per ordinary share in respect of 

the financial year ended 30 June 2022.

6. 	 Retention of Independent Non-Executive Director 

	 “That subject to the passing of Ordinary Resolution 2, Datuk Kamaludin Bin Yusoff who has 
served the Board as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company for a cumulative 
term of more than nine (9) years be and is hereby retained as Independent Non-Executive 
Director of the Company.” 

	 “That subject to the passing of Ordinary Resolution 3, Datuk Hairuddin Bin Mohamed 
who has served the Board as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company for a 
cumulative term of more than nine (9) years be and is hereby retained as Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company.”

	 “That Mr. Yeoh Chong Keng who has served the Board as Independent Non-Executive 
Director of the Company for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years be and is hereby 
retained as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company.”

	 “That Mr. Lee Kim Seng who has served the Board as Independent Non-Executive Director 
of the Company for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years be and is hereby retained 
as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company.”

	

(Please refer to 
Explanatory Notes  

to the Agenda)
(Resolution 1)

(Resolution 2)
(Resolution 3)

(Resolution 4)

(Resolution 5)

(Resolution 6)

(Resolution 7)

(Resolution 8)

(Resolution 9)
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7.	 Authority to Issue Shares Pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the Companies Act 2016.

	 “That pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the Companies Act 2016, the Constitution of the 
Company, the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 
(“Bursa Securities”) and subject to the approvals of the relevant governmental and/or 
regulatory authorities, the Directors be and are hereby empowered to issue shares in the 
Company, at any time to such persons and upon such terms and conditions and for such 
purposes as the Directors may, in their absolute discretion deem fit, provided that the 
aggregate number of shares to be issued does not exceed ten percent (10%) of the issued 
share capital (excluding treasury shares) of the Company for the time being; 

	 THAT pursuant to Section 85 of the Act to be read together with Clause 9 of the Constitution 
of the Company, approval be and is hereby given to waive the statutory pre-emptive rights 
of the shareholders of the Company to be offered new shares of the Company ranking 
equally to the existing issued shares arising from any issuance of new shares in the 
Company pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the Act; 

	 AND THAT the Directors be and are also empowered to obtain the approval for the listing 
of and quotation for the additional shares so issued on Bursa Securities; 

	 AND FURTHER THAT such authority shall commence immediately upon the passing of this 
resolution and continue to be in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General 
Meeting of the Company.”

	
8.	 Proposed Renewal of Authority for Share Buy-Back 

	 THAT subject always to the Companies Act 2016 (“the Act”), the Constitution of the 
Company, the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 
(“Bursa Securities”) (“Listing Requirements”) and all other applicable laws, guidelines, 
rules and regulations, the Company be and is hereby authorised, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, to purchase such number of issued shares in the Company as may be 
determined by the Directors of the Company from time to time through Bursa Securities 
upon such terms and conditions as the Directors may deem fit and expedient in the interest 
of the Company provided that:

(i)	 the aggregate number of issued shares in the Company (“Shares”) purchased 
(“Purchased Shares”) and/or held as treasury shares pursuant to this ordinary 
resolution does not exceed ten per centum (10%) of the total number of issued shares 
of the Company as quoted on Bursa Securities as at point of purchase; and

(ii)	 the maximum fund to be allocated by the Company for the purpose of purchasing the 
shares shall not exceed the aggregate of the retained profits of the Company based 
on the latest audited financial statements and/or the latest management accounts 
(where applicable) available at the time of the purchase,

	 (“Proposed Share Buy-Back”).

(Resolution 10)

(Resolution 11)

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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(Resolution 12)

	 AND THAT the authority to facilitate the Proposed Share Buy-Back will commence 
immediately upon passing of this Ordinary Resolution and will continue to be in force until:

(i)	 the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company following at which 
time the authority shall lapse unless by ordinary resolution passed at the meeting, the 
authority is renewed, either unconditionally or subject to conditions;

(ii)	 the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the 
Company is required by law to be held; or

(iii)	 revoked or varied by ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company 
at a general meeting,

	 whichever occurs first, but shall not prejudice the completion of purchase(s) by the Company 
of its own Shares before the aforesaid expiry date and, in any event, in accordance with the 
Listing Requirements and any applicable laws, rules, regulations, orders, guidelines and 
requirements issued by any relevant authorities.

	 AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised, at their discretion, 
to deal with the Purchased Shares until all the Purchased Shares have been dealt with by the 
Directors in the following manner as may be permitted by the Act, Listing Requirements, 
applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, requirements and/or orders of any relevant 
authorities for the time being in force:

i.	 To cancel all or part of the Purchased Shares;
ii.	 To retain all or part of the Purchased Shares as treasury shares as defined in Section 

127 of the Act;
iii.	 To distribute all or part of the treasury shares as dividends to the shareholders of the 

Company;
iv.	 To resell all or part of the treasury shares;
v.	 To transfer all or part of the treasury shares for the purposes of or under the employees’ 

share scheme established by the Company and/or its subsidiaries;
vi.	 To transfer all or part of the treasury shares as purchase consideration;
vii.	 To sell, transfer or otherwise use the shares for such other purposes as the Minister 

may by order prescribe; and/or
viii.	 To deal with the treasury shares in the manners as allowed by the Act, Listing 

Requirements, applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, requirements and/or 
orders of any relevant authorities for the time being in force.

9.	 Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a 
Revenue or Trading Nature 

	 “THAT, approval be and is hereby given for the Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate 
for the Company and/or its subsidiaries to enter into the categories of recurrent related 
party transactions of a revenue or trading nature falling within the nature of transactions 
set out in Section 2.5 of the Circular to Shareholders dated 21 October 2022 (“the Circular”), 
with the related parties falling within the classes of persons set out in Section 2.5 under 
the Circular, such transactions are necessary for the Company and/or its subsidiaries’ day-
to-day operations and which are carried out in the ordinary course of business, on terms 
which are not more favourable to the related parties than those generally available to the 
public and are not detrimental to the interest of the minority shareholders. 

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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	 THAT the authority conferred by such mandate shall commence upon the passing of this resolution and continue to 
be in force until:

(i)	 the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company, at which time it will lapse, unless 
by a resolution passed at the next AGM, the authority is renewed;

(ii)	 the expiration of the period within which the next AGM is required to be held pursuant to Section 340(2) of the 
Companies Act 2016 (“Act”) (but must not extend to such extension as may be allowed pursuant to Section 
340(4) of the Act); or

(iii)	 revoked or varied by resolution passed by the shareholders in a general meeting;

10.	 To transact any other business for which due notice shall have been given.	  

NOTICE OF DIVIDEND ENTITLEMENT

NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN that a final single tier dividend of 3.0 sen per share for the financial year ended 30 June 
2022, if approved at the Fifteenth Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 19 January 2023 to Depositors whose names 
appear in the Record of Depositors on 22 December 2022.

A Depositor shall qualify for entitlement to the dividend only in respect of:

(a)	 Share transferred to the Depositor’s Securities Account before 4.30 p.m. on 22 December 2022 in respect of ordinary 
transfers; and

(b)	 Shares bought on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on the cum entitlement basis according to Rules of the Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad.

By Order of the Board

Lau Yen Hoon (MAICSA 7061368) (SSM Practicing Certificate No.: 202008002143)
Tan Siew Hong (MAICSA 7066226) (SSM Practicing Certificate No.: 201908001915)
Secretaries

Kuala Lumpur 
21 October 2022

Notes:

•	 A member of the Company who is entitled to attend and vote at this meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two (2) proxies 
to attend and vote on his/her behalf.

•	 Where a member is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991 (“SICDA”),  
it may appoint one (1) proxy in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the 
credit of the said securities account.

•	 Where a member is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in 
one (1) securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee 
may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds. An exempt authorised nominee refers to an authorised nominee defined 
under SICDA which is exempted from compliance with the provisions of subsection 25A(1) of SICDA. 

•	 Where a member, an authorised nominee or an exempt authorised nominee appoints more than one (1) proxy, the proportion 
of shareholdings to be represented by each proxy must be specified in the instrument appointing the proxies, otherwise the 
appointment shall not be valid.

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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•	 A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company. A proxy appointed to attend and vote shall have the same rights as the 
member to move any resolution or amendment thereto and to speak at the meeting.

•	 The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or his attorney duly authorised in writing, 
or if the appointer is a corporation, either under its common seal or the hand of its officer or its duly authorised attorney.

•	 The instrument of proxy must be deposited at the Share Registrar’s office situated at 11th Floor, Menara Symphony No, 5, Jalan 
Professor Khoo Kay Kim, Seksyen 13, 46200 Petaling Jaya, Selangor at least forty-eight (48) hours before the time appointed for 
holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

	 In the case of the appointment of a proxy made in electronic form, the proxy form must be deposited through the Share Registrar’s 
website, Boardroom Smart Investor Online Portal at https://investor.boardroomlimited.com. Please refer to the procedures as set 
out in the Administrative Guide for the electronic lodgement of proxy form. All proxy form submitted must be received by the 
Company not less than Twenty-Four (24) hours before the time appointed for holding the General Meeting or adjourned General 
Meeting at which the person named in the appointment proposes to vote.

•	 For the purpose of determining a member who shall be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting, the Company shall be requesting 
Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn Bhd to make available to the Company a Record of Depositors as at 15 November 2022 and only a 
depositor whose name appears on the Record of Depositors shall be entitled to attend the meeting or appoint proxy(ies) to attend 
and vote on his/her behalf.

Explanatory Note to the Agenda 

Item 1 of the Agenda 
Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2022

This item is meant for discussion only. The provision of Section 248(2) and Section 340(1)(1) of the Companies Act 2016 
requires that the audited financial statements and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon be laid before the 
Company at its Annual General Meeting (“AGM”). As such this Agenda item is not a business which requires a motion to 
be put to vote by shareholders. 

Resolution 2,3
Re-Election of Directors 

The Board has, through the Nomination Committee (“NC”), assessed the performance and contribution of the retiring 
Directors, taken into consideration the fit and proper criteria under the Directors’ Fit and Proper Policy of the Company. 
The NC and the Board were satisfied that the retiring Directors met the criteria as prescribed under Paragraph 2.20A of 
the Main Market Listing Requirements Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on character, 
experience, integrity, competence and time commitment to effectively discharge their roles as Directors. Accordingly, the 
Board (save for the retiring Directors who had abstained from deliberations on their own re-election) is supportive of the 
re-election of the retiring Directors, whose profiles are set out under pages 4 to 7 of the Annual Report 2022.

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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Resolution 6,7,8,9
Retention of Independent Non-Executive Director

The Board has assessed the independence of Datuk Kamaludin Bin Yusoff, Datuk Hairuddin Bin Mohamed, Mr. Yeoh Chong 
Keng and Mr. Lee Kim Seng who have served on the Board as Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company 
for a cumulative term of more than nine (9) years, and has recommended that the approval of the shareholders be 
sought to retain them as the Independent Non-Executive Directors, as they possess the following attributes necessary in 
discharging their roles and functions of an Independent Non-Executive Director:-

(i)	 Fulfill the criterias of an Independent Director as stated in the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Main Market Listing 
Requirements.

(ii)	 Has served the Board for long period and therefore possess great knowledge on the strategies, operations of the 
Group.

(iii)	 Able to bring independent and objective judgement to the Board deliberations, without the influence of the 
Management. 

(iv)	 Participate actively in Board and Board Committees deliberations and provides objective judgement and input to the 
Board. 

(v)	 Exercise due care in carrying out their professional duties in the best interest of the Group. 

Resolution 10 
Authority to Issue Shares Pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the Companies Act 2016

The proposed Ordinary Resolution 10, if passed, will grant a general mandate and empower the Directors to issue shares 
up to an aggregate amount not exceeding 10% of the total number of issued share capital of the Company for the time 
being, for such purposes as the Directors consider would be in the best interest of the Company without having to 
convene separate general meetings. This authority, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, will expire at the 
conclusion of the next AGM. 

This general mandate will provide flexibility to the Company for any possible fundraising activities, including but not 
limited to further placement of shares for purpose of funding future investment, working capital and/or acquisitions.

As at the date of this notice, the Company has not issued any new shares under the general mandate sought at the 
previous AGM.

Resolution 11
Proposed Renewal of Authority for Share Buy-Back 

The proposed Ordinary Resolution 11, if passed, will empower the Directors to purchase the Company’s shares of up to 
10% of the total number of issued share capital of the Company at any point in time, by utilising the funds allocated which 
shall not exceed the total retains profits and share premium of the Company. This authority, unless revoked or varied at a 
general meeting, will expire at the conclusion of the next AGM.

Please refer to Part A of the Circular to Shareholders dated 21 October 2022 for further information.

Resolution 12
Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature 

The proposed Resolution 12 is to seek renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate to allow the Company and/or its subsidiaries to 
enter into Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature and to enable the Company to comply with 
Paragraph 10.09, Part E of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The mandate will 
take effect from the date of the passing of the Ordinary Resolution until the next AGM of the Company. 

Please refer to Part B of the Circular to Shareholders dated 21 October 2022 for further information.

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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Statement Accompanying 
Notice of Annual General Meeting

Pursuant to Paragraph 8.27(2) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad

1.	 There is no person seeking election as director of the Company at the 15th Annual General Meeting of the Company.

2.	 General Mandate for Issue of Securities in accordance with Paragraph 6.03(3) of the Main Market Listing Requirements

	 Please refer to the Explanatory Notes on Special Businesses for Resolution No. 10 on Authority to Issue Shares 
pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the Companies Act 2016 under the Notice of the 15th Annual General Meeting for 
details of the general mandate.
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I/We 	

NRIC No./Passport No./Company No. 	

of (Full Address) 	

	

Tel No. 	  /Email Address: 	

Hereby appoint:

Name of Proxy in capital letter Proportion of Shareholding to be represented by 
the Proxies:

Number of shares Percentage (%)

Proxy 1 Name:

NRIC No./Passport No.:

Tel:

Email address:

Proxy 2 Name:

NRIC No./Passport No.:

Tel:

Email address:

Total

or failing which *the Chairman of the Meeting as my/our proxy(ies), to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Fifteenth (15th) Annual 
General Meeting of the Company to be conducted fully virtual via its meeting platform at https://meeting.boardroomlimited.my (Domain 
Registration No. with MYNIC-D6A357657) on Tuesday, 22 November 2022 at 10.00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

My/our proxy/proxies is/are to vote as indicated below:

No. Resolutions For Against

1. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees

2. To re-elect Datuk Kamaludin Bin Yusoff as Director

3. To re-elect Datuk Hairuddin Bin Mohamed as Director

4. To re-appoint HLB Ler Lum Chew PLT as Auditors of the Company 

Special businesses

Ordinary Resolutions:-

5. To declare single tier final dividend 3 sen per ordinary share in respect of the financial year ended  
30 June 2022

6. To retain Datuk Kamaludin Bin Yusoff as Independent Non-Executive Director 

7. To retain Datuk Hairuddin Bin Mohamed as Independent Non-Executive Director

8. To retain Mr. Yeoh Chong Keng as Independent Non-Executive Director

9. To retain Mr. Lee Kim Seng as Independent Non-Executive Director

10. Authority to issue shares pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the Companies Act 2016

11. To approve the Renewal of Authority for Share Buy-Back

12. To approve the Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue 
or Trading Nature

(Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate boxes on how you wish your vote to be cast. If no specific direction as to voting is given, 
the proxy will vote or abstain at his discretion.)

Signed this 	  day of 	 , 2022 

	  
Signature of Shareholder

*Strike out whichever not applicable 

(Company No. 200801012850 / 814138-K) 
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Form of Proxy 
No. of Shares held

CDS Account No.



Notes:

•	 A member of the Company who is entitled to attend and vote at this 
meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend 
and vote on his/her behalf.

•	 Where a member is an authorised nominee as defined under the 
Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991 (“SICDA”), it may 
appoint one (1) proxy in respect of each securities account it holds 
with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said 
securities account.

•	 Where a member is an exempt authorised nominee which holds 
ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one (1) 
securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number 
of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect 
of each omnibus account it holds. An exempt authorised nominee refers 
to an authorised nominee defined under SICDA which is exempted from 
compliance with the provisions of subsection 25A(1) of SICDA. 

•	 Where a member, an authorised nominee or an exempt authorised 
nominee appoints more than one (1) proxy, the proportion of 
shareholdings to be represented by each proxy must be specified in the 
instrument appointing the proxies, otherwise the appointment shall not 
be valid.

•	 A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company. A proxy 
appointed to attend and vote shall have the same rights as the member 
to move any resolution or amendment thereto and to speak at the 
meeting.

•	 The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand 
of the appointer or his attorney duly authorised in writing, or if the 
appointer is a corporation, either under its common seal or the hand of 
its officer or its duly authorised attorney.

•	 The instrument of proxy must be deposited at the Share Registrar’s 
office situated at 11th Floor, Menara Symphony No, 5, Jalan Professor 
Khoo Kay Kim, Seksyen 13, 46200 Petaling Jaya, Selangor at least forty-
eight (48) hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or 
any adjournment thereof.

	 In the case of the appointment of a proxy made in electronic 
form, the proxy form must be deposited through the Share 
Registrar’s website, Boardroom Smart Investor Online Portal at  
https://investor.boardroomlimited.com. Please refer to the procedures 
as set out in the Administrative Guide for the electronic lodgement of 
proxy form. All proxy form submitted must be received by the Company 
not less than Twenty-Four (24) hours before the time appointed for 
holding the General Meeting or adjourned General Meeting at which the 
person named in the appointment proposes to vote.

•	 For the purpose of determining a member who shall be entitled to 
attend and vote at the meeting, the Company shall be requesting 
Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn Bhd to make available to the Company 
a Record of Depositors as at 15 November 2022 and only a depositor 
whose name appears on the Record of Depositors shall be entitled to 
attend the meeting or appoint proxy(ies) to attend and vote on his/her 
behalf.
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